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right for cffering, so lets - why don't we just take
patentially half an hour or sooner if you want or if you want
a Little longer we cen ce:stainly 3¢ that this allernoon to
take a look at the instroctions that the Court has. We can
come back on the record with respect to ihose particular
<astructions, I[f you have any OoThers Lhal you want to offer
today thal you belleve should be considared hy the Court we
can cextainly discuss those on the record today as well. So
lata lets ¢o abead and yecess and then does that worzk for
ocounsel ox Iz Lhis -

MS. HILTON: That works for me Your Monor.

MR, SKARS: T would like ®o addross an issoe.

THE COURT: You - you may.

MR. SEARS: S0 In the course of ny rosearch 1 lcoked
at a jury instructicn oul of California . . «(Fury

ingtructions not quested to be & ibed) .

THE COURT: With that let me consider Mr, Sears
ArQUILNTS, Stats’s opposition. Clearly the burden of preof is
To prove that a person was in actusl physical contyel and in
looking at Rogers Lhose ave some of the factors tha Court
would - could consider, would rula out other factors. T mean
there could be sanms other factors that weren’l in Rogers. I
don’t think that'c and exclusive liat of potentlal factors
but those axe the factors Lhat have deen Sdentified in that

CRIM0AS STATL W JEVAIN v JANER 1R ISN2L I e

THE COURT: I can {f you want Lo take a look abl Lba
instructions that I have now or = or if not wa can certainly
do iU tonorcow.

MR, SEARS: T'd rather do it temorrow.

THE COURT: That - that’s fine.

S. HILTON: Okay.

MR. SEARS: I need to look at them overnight.

THE COTRT: Then - then the - if there’s nothing clse
then sl this time then the Court will stand in recess til
tomoY¥oWw marning at nine thirty. 2hocld scamlhing come up
with counsel that Lhey believe any type of hearing or matters
need to be heard tefore the Court before nine thirty, try to
contact us by five teday or I I of course will e in carly
in the morning, so 11l be in way before nine thirty so yeu
can get npe Lhan,

MR. SEARS: Thank you Your Hanmor,

THE COURT: All right,

MS. HILTON: Thank you Your Ecaor.

THE COURT: All :ight. Court’s in repess.

BAILIFF: All rise. The Seventh Judlclal Diatyier
Court of thé Stale of Nevada 1n apg for Lhe County of White
Fine is new in zession, the Homoreble Gary D. Fairman
presiding.

THE COURZ: Court’s in session, please he seated
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ope. I mean theXe a¥e o nusbur of other cases that cane after
Rogers too that - that address those factors as - as
eppropriate. Bul - but you know, clearly Lhe standard is -
is whether or not the circumstances of the individual support
actual physical contrel and it iz true that the jury ix

supposed to weigh those factors, whatever evidence ig before
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MR, SEARS: Im just wondering, how oo they weigh it?

that"s whal it goes.

Sears but -

That’a that guestion,

THE COURT: Nell they’'re going te — well you know as -
you're = you're asking that there naeds to be & level of
Prool thal they must - okay - 2o that - that’c wbhat you're
saying, not how they weight it but what -~ what ievel has
there Lo be for the to be satiafied. I understand your
argunent. Okay.

MR. SEARS: Thank you.

THE COURT: All right. Any = anything else hare Lhis
atternoon?

ME. MILTON: A ne Your Homor, 5o did you want to come
back in abont thirty minutas?

AN 1908 STATE OF NEVALA v JAMEX AT Lmda Uweson, Tremsorber W

everyooe. Good morning. Let Lhe zacord refloct that we’ye in
the second day of cur tris). Wo have the presence of the
Defendant, Mr. James, his counsel Mr. Richard Sears, Srate’s
counsel Miss NMcKinzie HilTon, Mhile Pine County Deputy
District Attormey. We have the prasence of our jurere in the
jury box and wa are in the SLate’s case and Miszs Hilton you
can go forward.

MS. MILTON: Thank you Your Honor,

THE COURT: Call your ext witness.

ME. HILTON: Your Uonor the State is valling
Criminalist Felicla Mason.

THE COURT: Okay.

MS. HILTON: And Miss Mams $f you could admit her?

THE COURT: Cood mozsing Mizs Muson. Are you able to
Bear the Court? Miss Mason are you able to hear the Court?

M5, MASON: Yes. Can you hear me?

THE COUKYT: Me can. Thank you. Wiere you are if
you’ll pleaze raize your right hand and cur Court Clerk will
adninister an oath to yon,

CLERX: DO you solennly swear the testimony you are
about to provide in this matter hefore the Court shall be thae
truth, the whole truth and nothing but the truth so help you
Cod?

NS. MASON: Yes.
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THE CCURT: M1ss Mason, I - I Jjust have one just
preparatory question for the jury bafore you start youy
lestimony. Are you able £o sea the screen okay? T know we
have some glare with the sbades - would fe — if any of lhose
thades wera clased, does that asaiat? Is anybody haviag any
difficulty seeing the screen this morping? Okay. All right.
Vary well. Thes Miss Mason belore you start your Testinony,
if you would please state your full pame for Lhe Court and
spell your last name.

NS. MASCN: Felicia Masson, M- A -5 - 0 - N,

THE COURT: Thank you. You can go forward with
suamination counsel.

M5. HILTON: Thank you Your Honor, Miss Mason without
qlving your exect sddress, whare sboul do You Yeazice?

MS. MASON: Reoo, Nevada.

M. ELLTION: And how long bave you lived in Reno?

MS. MASCN: ¥or six up years.

MS. HTLTON: What 18 your cccupation?

M5, MASON: T am n criminalisec.

MS. HILTON: And where are you enployed?

MI. MASCH: T em employed AT the Washoe county
Sherifi’s Office Forcosic Science Dlvision 1n Their
Toxicology Section,

MI. ATITON: Mow long have you been so employwd?

M-S STATE CF MUVALA v LAMIS Rl A Tieds Dwiis, Svamacrder L2

@xienyive trainlng progrem with the Washoe County Sheriff’s
Office, Forensic Science Diwision, Toxicolagy Sector which
included seversl online forensic Loxicology yelmled courses,
oral presentations o show my competency in each portion of
the Lraining. T also bad to perform ar ¢o & written teat in
relation to the alcobsl tasting. I bad to teanalyze over a
hundred aleshol cases that were previously run by an
experionced analyst and T bad Lo be within & certain
parcantace of those resuits in order to pess that portlion of
&y Lzsining. 1 aldo bave successtully participated daily in
several alcehol proflciepncy tests and ! sttended tha Robert
Bark Alcohol and Biqhway SaleLly Training Crograr at Indiana
funintelliqible word) Universitly which was Laught by sevazal
forensic toxicologists and or toxicologists themselves and
thay weol over their research as it relates to inpalrnent
when 1t <upes Lo ingesting of alochol 45 well a3 the wifacts
of alcohol, sicohol analysis end courtroom testinoay.

Mi. EILTON: And are these poth your degrees asd the
additional training you underwent, are |hese coamonly
Accepted Lrainings Iin the field o foreasic science?

MS. MASCH: Yes,

M. EIL?0N: In your estimetion, how many - and so as
part of your dutles as a criminalist you said that you can
tast blood samples?

R 1L STATE OF NEVADL v FAMTS SeoAd Linc Ls wn, Trammmaibes s
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MS. MASON: Since Februnry of two thousapnd and
fifveen.

ME. HILTON: Mixx Mason a criminalist?

MS. MASON: A criminalist analyzes in this case in the
toxicology section analyzes blood and or urine for the

of drugs and alcohol and provides

pr and or ab
court roon testimony.

M5, HILTON: And in addition Lo the presence or
abgence, does a criminalist also determine quantities?

NS, MANON: You.

NS. HILTON: Please describe for your - for the jury
your education, Tralninmg, snd experience Lhat you underwent
Lo becane a criminalisr?

MS. MASON: In two thousand eleven I received my
Bachelor’s of Science in Chemistry premedicine from Norfolk
State University and then I in two thousand ang Lhirleen 1
received ny Master’s of Science in Forenale Sciences from the
University of Alabama at Rirminghan. While attending the
University of Alabama at Birmingham 1 intersed with the
Alabama Department of Forensic Scionticts in there
funintelligible words - recosding choppyl section for one
year. I then geined full time cxployssnt with that sane
agency in their Drug (unintelligible words) Ssction for a
year and (unintelligible words). | then went through an

CK I9MCE STATEOF NEVAGA v JAMES  S119/sun Tl Lnncien, Trmmonher o

MS. MASON: Yes.

MS. WYLTON: And in your career, how many blood zample
anslysiz have you conducted?

MS. MASON: Speclfically for elcohol testing?

N3, BILTON: Yes.

M5, MASON: Owver four thousand.

M5, HILTON: Deex tho Lraining and experience you
previously testified to give you the shility to examine a
bleod sample Lor Lhe presence and quantity of alcohol?

ME. MASON: Yex.

MS. HILTON: Bave you tLestified about your
Professional cpinion and the basls for 1t in Nevada Courts?

NS. MASON: Yes.

ME. ATLTON: Could you list aces of the Courts Plossa?

MS. MASON: Yes. District Courts for Reno, Humboldt
and Carson City end thea several Jusllce and Municipal Courts
throughout the State of Movada.

NS, HILTON: More specifically, have you testified in
Court regarding blood tesTing for the detectica of and the
Prosence and gquantity of alcohol?

M. MASON:T Yes.

NS, HILTON: Mave you Lastified Ln Court befare
regarding the effects alcobol has - geaerally hes ca human
beings?

R IORGE STATY O MIVADA v JOMEX VIBAS29Y) S Dk, Trasscriber m
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M5. MASON: Yes.

Mi. MILTON: Eave you been rrained to use a specific
selentific test or method to deturmine whether there is a
presence of alcohol in a blocd saspla taken from 3 pergon?

M5, MASON: Yeu.

N5. HILTCN: What is that method?

Ni. MASCH: deadspace Gas Chromatography.

M3, FTLTOM: Aed can you descclbe for the jury what
leadspace Gas Chrometography 187

MS. MASON: Yes. So it fg & method used to analyse
volatile compaunds go ethanol which is the intoxicating
ingredient in alcohol hev - alechelic Bavorages Le a weletile
compound. A wolatile cospound is & coppound that usually
{uniotelligible words - recording choppy) wWith gas, so with
Headspace Gax Chromstography a portica of blood is puL into a
container, This conteiner s sealed and heated. The healing
Causes the volatlle compounds to o from the blood spece lnto
A gas pace. A portion of this gas phogse is then siscted onto
™o differenl columns to which the {unintelligible words)
while all compsnants are separated Trom cach other and Lbeir
idantity is determined as well as the amount.

M5. MILTON: Ts uging Meadspoce Gas Chromwlography to
test for aloghol a widely recognized scientific approach o
daternine the prasence and guantity of alcohol?

O IYENTS STATE OF NEVALS W AMES S Linds Dowice. Trasaceder ne

alcohol in the Defendant’s blood and on the affects aleshol
guneraslly bas on The human body.

THE COURT: Mr. Seors, euy objecticay

MR. SEARS: 1 bave no objecticn ¢ her testinony with
sospect To the measurements and using gas chronalography
equipment. T would 1lke to voir dive soma nore on hor
Acceptante a3 an expert in tha area of the affects of aleohol
on the human body.

THE COURT: Reszponse?

ME. BILTON: Veur Menor, qlven the TaoT Thal sl has
testifled about her csleasive training as well as the lact
that the Lraining she underwent iz accepted widely in the
sciontific community of foraneic ncionce, the State bolieres
it hax properly shown that she Ls able to provide her
professional opinion to the jury.

THE COURT: Ckay. Anything furcher on that then Mr.
Seara?

MR, SEARS: I think T only hsve two questions.

THE COURT: 1°m going to allow the quastions and then
the Courl will rule. You nay traverse.

MR, SEANS: Thank you. Miss Mason cas yor heer me?

NE. MASON: I ean.

MK, SEARS: I'm - my name Ls Richard Sears. I‘m the
Defenge attocney in this case. [ caly have a couple of
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NS. NASON: Yes,

MS. HILTON: Ami is thot method generally acceplad by
the majority of experts in the ficld of forensic science?

MS. MASON: Yasz.

M5, HILTON: You previously indicated that you have
training, knowlodge and experience to Lestify regarding the
affects alcohal has on a human being, corroct?

N5. NMASON: Correct.

ME. HILTON: Can you describe Lhat particular
training?

MS. MASON: Yes., S0 the training was conductod when [
= I partlcipated in @ training through the Robert Borkingtein
Aloochol and Safety Training Progrem thet I described before.

M5, HILTON: And what did that training iovolve?

N5, MASON: So the tzaining {uniotelligible words -
recording choppy) over the affects of alushol, the analysis
©f aloohol and courtroom testimony.

MS. HILTON: Ancd in the field of rforensic science, iz
Lhat portion of the Robert Borkinstain Training Period widely
acoepled?

NS. MASON: Yes.

ME. NILTON: Your Houmor, at thiz time Lac State moves
to allow Mizz Mason to testify as to her professional opinion
regarding Lhe predence or absence as well as Lbe quentizy of

R PANER ETATE OF MEVALA ve. JANSR Ainaeoen Linslie Dhsnn, Vrmmmarshons: m

guestions and il lu with regard Lo Lhe effect That aloshol
has on the human body okay?

MS$, MASON: Okay.

MR. SEARS: During your training session were you
doing lectures or were you doing observation work on people
who weze under the lafluence of alcohol?

MS5. MASON: Both.

MR. SEARS: That’es all 1 wanted to know,

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. SEARS: 1711 accepl ber ax an expert Your Bosor.

THE COURT: She’s allowed to testify.

MS. BILTON: Thank you Your Monor. Miss Mason what
#fe Lhe cffecta thal alaobol in general, I koow iL's
ditferent foX cech perszon, but whal are generally the effecrs
that aleohol has on a persen?

M5, MASON: S0 a person can have bloodshot ayes,
slurred speech, have Trouble with balance and coordination.
When it ceum Lo driving, they can have Trouble performing
Lhat, they not (unintelligible words - recording chopay]
Attention tasks, (unintelligible wards).

M3, HILTON: Miss Mason cen you hear us?

THUE COURT: Your screen ix frozen so we’ll have you go
ahead and repeat your testimeny on the effects.

M5, MASON: Okay. Can you hear me still?

o ETATOF inwe MR Ll Liewew, Traesenine: m
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THE COURT: We can.

M5, MASCH: Ckay. So & person could have Dloog shol
eyes, alurred speoch, Lrouble when 1T cowes (umintelligible
wordes) balance and coordination. Mhen it comes to driving
they can have increased reactien time which means take longer
ta react to a poteatial hazard compared to somedsne who is not
under the Influence of any drugs or elcokel asx wall ag can
have trouble with performing a divided attentica Lask.

M3, HILTCH: Going to the - the TesTing process that
YOu Lniergy When You Teat & biood xaxpie, can you describa
bkow the blood sanmple gets te you? Can you daseribe that
proceas?

MS. MASON: Yer, =0 the (unintelligible words
racording choppyl 5o this 13 where the blocd samplaes are
stored, (unintelligible words) by the Washoe County Sheriff’s
Glffice Forensic S¢ience Division Evidence Section
funintelligible words) can come directly from the Officer
banding It Lo Lhe evidence Technicisn. It can coms Lheough
the pall or it can be delivered to their lock box. Once the
evidence techniclan receives thasa caze, they verify that the
CASC are senled appropriately. Once verified they then open
the case and varify Lhal the contxol number which is the T
aunber that 15 placed on the blood samples matches Lo Lhe
{unintelligible word = recording choppyl that is on this -

W IS5 STATL LT NV AIML W JAMES MBeNm Lamle Dn i, Vo ber ne

testing and the amount of nlooa that is used.

M8, HILTON: So going back a little Bit to the Trol
nunber, is that - what mumber ix on the toxicolagy submittal
form That you gel from the subnlitiing agency?

MS. MRSGH: The T nunber or Lthe contyoel tumber,

M3, EILTON: Ard iz the T pumber the sane ax the
contre]l nunbers?

M5. MASON: Yes.

MG, HILTON: And why 13 it called & T number?

ME. NASON: That’s just the tracking {uninoteliigible
word} that’s used from the agency to the lab.

NS, EILTCN: Does it begin with a 72

M5, SON: Yes,

M5. HILTGN: And you gald that the T or conlzol number
on the form has to match the T or control nunber on the
tubes, correct?

NS, MASON: Corxect.

M5, HILTON: So when you get reacy to do your test on
a given blood sample, hew do you obtain Lhat?

ME. MASON: So T obtain the specific blosd from the
doched secuze refrigezated SLOrage located im the toxicology
section. T then do a chaln of custody o show that these
bleed tubes are going from thatl refrigerator to me=. I then
PeXTOXM a check to ansure that cach specimen that I'm type
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the middle form, This 1 numbar or control number is pub oa
the blood {unintelligihle word) by the officer who achserved
the blood draw. Once this process is done, Lhe evidence
Technician then transfers the evidance to a member of Lhe
toxicology secLion and from there the member of the
toxicology section perfurms a logging process. His logging
process includes assioning any Lests that was reguested by
the requesting agency verifying that the names and agency
cage nmunber are correct and {unintelligible words} number is
then given to the each individual blood (unintelligible ward)
and then a chain of custedy is performwd to Lrunsfer all of
thoge (unintelligible wordl into a locked secure
{undntelllgible word) storage locales in the toxicology
section which is only accessed by a toxicology section mmber
ond I did not say this before but during that initial
evidence process when they’re laocking at the case, they do
assign a laboratory number ond Lhis labosratory nunber le a L
aunber that is given to wach piece of ovidence that ia
submitted into the Forengic Science Division and 1t's uged Lo
track the chain of custody throughont The Forenxic Science
Divigion and then that specimen number (3 specific to the
Loxicology and That lracks the chain of custody again for the
= the specimen blood tube for what’s kind of a
(unintelligible ward) thing doae om it, who was dolng the

OB 0NN FEATL OF MEVADA s JANTS e T Cuvinn, Irmaanne "

{umintelligible word) into 1ts container has unique
identifiers thal match 30 the specimen susber, the control
nunber, the laboratory number and the person’s name.

MS. HILTON: And If there - S0 in this process you've
doscribed, 12 something was not properly sealed, or a numbar
didn’t mateh, what would you do?

. MASCH: T would not test that sample,

MS. EILTON: Whexn you're dolng - and 8o you Telked
about a refrigerated storage, does the refrigeration or
noarefrigeration alleclh the presence or quantity of alcohol
in the bleod?

MS. MRSON: Mo Lt does not.

MS. BILTON: And why do you place it in refrigearated
SLorage?

M5. MASON: We place it in refrigersated storoge just
for best practice as well as (unintelligible wozd) to have it
be secuyed.

MS. HILTON: But that wouldn’t affect the outcome of
the test?

NS. MASON: Correct.

M5, MILYON: So ocnce you have the samples Miss Mason,
©an you describe the process you o Lhrough?

MS. MASON: Yas. So once I verify the unique
identifiers that | mentioned befoze, T (unintellliglible words)

RIS STATE OF NEVADA we JAMES B e Lomds Davin. Thmmmisdos ur
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each blood individually into & specific container. T then
verlly once Lhose bBloods are (unintelllgible words - chorpy
rwcording) pul them onto the inatvument fu a specific
sequence or specific order, excuse me., Once [ do Lhat
verification anothe: anelyst in the sectica doas the
verification of those - of that sequence again. Unce the
samples are run on that instrumentaticn, ! then do a check to
worify that the acceptance critezia were mat for the zesults
in order %o roport them.

ME. HILTON: And what 15 acceprance criterial

M5. MASON: So acceptance criteria are criteria put in
Place Lo suwuiw sl Lha rOSUlLS XXe 2CCUXate mo in thia
case, the retenticn Lige would have to Ze within three
percent. of the ponretenlicn time for each velatile compound
o for cxample othannl, the results for the cases siuce Lbeze
are four resulte, there - they have to be within five percent
of each other, and the any blanks ihal ore negative that we
run has To have no report or wvalue for any volatiles that
have been run.

MS. HILTON: And ‘s that to ensure the accuracy of the
tese?

M5. MASON: Yes.

M. HILTON: Can you describe what happens in - in
general te:ms Lo the Slood during the test — during the gas

19008 ATATE OF MY ALA . AP WIS s L, Tommmn e ux

- administrative review. From Lhere the repart s sant out,

MS. HDILTON: If a particular test did not meet
acceptance crileria, what woeuld happen?

ME. HMASCH: The resulls would not be accepted ang the
tests will be run again.

M3. HILTON: Is ibere a morgin of error Zor Lhis Lest?

MS, MASON: I’m not gquite sure whal you mean.

M5, HILTON: 1s - is there a percentage thal Lhe
rusulls are within?

NS. MASCH: On, rhe uncertalnly of neasurewent? Yes.

MS. EILICH: Yes. Can you explain what is meant by
uncartainty of measurcment?

M5, MASON: Yes. So basically, each measurement is not
perfect so we taka inte account the different things that can
affect the measuzenent, so we take into account how different
analysts (unintelligible words) in the aection, how the
controls are reported based off of different days asd wa take
all of this, put tThem togelher and this is reported on the
forenzic report at the plus or minus velue oo it gives a
Yange of valuss that we ara ninety-five percent contident
thet the reault is within.

M5, HILTON: And what - what is the foym that yon
complete, the report, what is that called? 7t looks like we
may have frozen again.
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chromot - gas - Lbe Headspace Gas Chromatography?

M5. MASON: Yes. So once the blood is put into the
spacific container, fv’s thon heated - or I sghould say its
put into the container. The container is sealed, and the
container is heated. Then the volatile compounds go f£rom
that liquid base, or from the blood, into the bead apace of
that glass container and a portion of that gas is then
ejected oulo Lhe Lwo different columns and the volatile
compourxis are separaled Irom each other and The identity or
cach volatile compound and amount is determined Lrom there.

MS. HILTON: And what happens after you complete the
testy

M5, MASON: So after the test is campleted, then T
insure that all of the results meet acceplance criteria. I
then sign off that ) reviewed that information and Then
another analyst inspection conducts & technical reviow. That
technical review 15 basically going over the same thing
making sure that the acceptance criteria were mel and that T
signed off on everything appropristely. After this, a analyst
review iz done again to insure that once I put all of the
information into & specific cage file that all the
information matches the (Mmintelligible word]l micdle form and
the forensic yeports, elcetera, and then anothar parson after
This point {unintelligible words) section doss an adninistra

UK rias XTLTHOW NPV LD v TAVETS LAt Tamde Danum ¥ rmmr s "

THE COUKT: Yeah, We’re - we're frozan mamsnlarily oo
when you unfreere, we’ll continue ca.

M5, HILTON: Can you hear us Miss Mason?

THE COURT: She may be able to but we can’t hear her

UNKNOMN FERSON: Looks |ike we’re rebooting,

THE OOURT: Yeah, When she returns on the screea [711
have you repeat your guestion. Miss Magon we can see you
now. Are you «ble Lo haar the Court?

MS. MASON: Yes.

THE COURT: Okay. 1'm going to continue on with having
counsel ask you the laxt guastion before the acreen (rozc.

MS. MASON: Okay.

MS. HTLTON: Miss Mason, what is the document In
camplete the YOport called?

ME. MASON: A forensic repost.

MS. MILTON: And g Lhat what contains the results of
your gnalysisy

NS, MASON: Yes.

M5. BILTON: And on Lhal forensic report for a alochol
test, iz it listed as alcohol or somuthing else?

MS5. MASON: 2h, I'm going to have to take a look at
Lhe report to 50€ What you mean.

LM SYATY OF MNTVADA v 1AMEX LR - M Ve Dwreen, T romsorioe: m
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N5. HAILTCH: Is there another term that's used on The
report ather than the word aleokal?

M5. MASON: Ch, ethanol?

MS. EILTYON: Yos, And what is ethanol?

M5, MASON: So ethanol is the intoxleating ingredient
Tound In alecholic beverages.

MS. HILTON: On Decenbar twenty-first of twenty
eighteen, did tbe Washoe County Forensic Divigion receive a
specinen from Nhite Pine County?

N5, MASON: I would have to leok at the report Lo
werify thal data.

ME. HILTON: Your Honor I'm showing Defcose counsel
what has been marked es State’s Zxhibit Four, T have also
provided a copy. Miss Musen did I amail vou a copy of a
Forensic Heporzt with an axnihit sticker on iv?

M3. MASON: Yes.

MS. ATITON: And are you asnle Lo view that?

M5, MASON: Yes.

M3. HILTCHN: What I’m going to do now is 1L'm going Lo
ack to appzoach the Clerk and I’m going to have the Clerk
hand or bold in tront of the camers the document that I
emalled You 8¢ thal we cac have you verify that it is the
sare document With an axhibit sticker saying forty-tive D. A.
Lascovary as well as State’s Exhibit Four with the casze

CRA-DUMGE ITATE OFOITVADA s JANES  2Us-1susil Lamda Lrvson., Lrmscrbor >

Exhibit four?

NS, MASON: Its kiod of not all the way in bus it
locks like its C R One ¥ine Zero Three Zero Two Eight. l1t’s
nol ell Lhe way - like 1 don’t know if you can see, it kind
of =

M5. HILTON: Okay. And is this copy that I have sant
you s true and accurate copy of the foremsic report you
conpleted in this caze?

MS. MASOMN: Yas.

M5. EILTCH: Your Honor the Slate woild move [o acmit
State’s Kxhibit Fouc.

TIE COURT: Any abjection ccunsel?

MR, SEARS: No Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay. State’s Exhibit rour iz admitted
without ¢djection.

MG, HLLTON: MiIss Masen [’d like you to refer te
State’s Exhibit Four the Washoue County - did the Forangic
Science Dlvision receive a blood sample on twelve twenty-one
o twanty eighteen from the White Pine Counly Sherifi‘z
Office? Looks 1ike 1L may be Irozen again.

THE COURT: Agalo we're frozen Misa Mazon =o if you’ll
hold your teslimony for a nomenl we'll go ahead and resume it
D3 S00NL A8 -~ 83 300n A5 our screen is - allows us Lo.

N5. BILTON: You: Honor if I may hawe the Court’s

N 1528 STATE OF 14 v JAniey ~ Lade 1 T rm—— (=)
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numbar for this case, May I approach Your Eonor?

-

2 THE COURT: You may.

3 MS. MILTON: And Miss Adens if you will hold this in
4} Lront of the Comersa? Miss Mason can you sec that?

5 MS. MASOH: No.

3 MS. BILTON: Is there & way to gel it closer?

7 M, ADANS: I711 try.

]

9 MS. HILTON: Your Honor may 1 approach that camera?
10 THE COURT: You may. T don’t think that you’re qoing

11} Lo probably getr =

1z ME. HILTON: I don't think 1 am. I°m not goiag to
13 ] eall.
4 THOE COURT: - good wiglon even - even if you were |

15| don’t know how thatfs going Lo work for you.

1 ME. EILTON: Um, we have Mr, Johnaon available for
17] 7. T. T think - L think I ¢an have her = lot me try it this
18} way. Miss Mason was the copy marked az State’s Exhibit Four

19§ thal 1 sent you, was that the forensic report you completed -

20 MS. MASON: Yes.

21 NS, HILTON: ~ in Lhix cage?

2 M5, MASON: Yes,

23 MS. BILTON: and looking at that document coulé you

24| tell me whul case number 13 listed on Lhe bottom of State’s

CR-1SCE08 STATE GF NEVALN v JAME3 Mo Laads Dwcs, Trmwesdor wm

poermission to ask Mr, Cahwon Lo go down staics and see If he

2] can locate Mr. Johnson?

3 THE COURT: Go ahead and go.

4 M5. HILTON: Thank you Mr. Cahoon. Miss Mason Can you
5| bear us now?

& M3. MASCHN: Yes.

7 M5, RILTON: So 1'm going o have you look at State’s
8] Exhibit Four. Did you complete this document?

9 M5, MASON: Yes.

10 M5. HILTON: And 18 your =zignature located on this

Il | document?

12 ME. MASON: Yes.

13 Mi. BILTON: On December twenty-first of twenty

14 ] elghteen did the Foranszic Sclonco Division receive e blood
15| sample from the White Pine County Sherifffx Office?

16 M5, MASON: Yes.

17 MS. NILTON: What is Lhe subject matler of that

IS ) sobmittal?

19 NS. MAN: Are you asking about tha sebject’s name?

20| £’m pot quite sure what you Mean.

21 ME. HILTON: OUn, yex. Mhat is the subjecl’s samal
22 M5. MASON: Myrtis James 7.

23 MS. HILTON: And what is the control number?

2 ME. MASON: T Zere Saven Two Five Niane Five.
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M5. HILTON: And lo that the swne conlrol nunber Lhat
would have been on the evidence submittal form?

M5, MASON: Yes.

M5. HILTON: Who g listed as the Officer in this
case?

M5, MASCH: Shedy and it seys nuxber zero five.

N$. EILTON: Does your forensic repost irdicate the
date of collection of tha blood?

N5. MASCN: Yes,

ME. MILTON: And what 1z that?

NE. MASCH: Twalve ninetean two thougand and elghtaan.

NS, RILTON: Doss IL indicate the collection time?

M5, MASON: Yes.

M3. ETLTON: When coopleting the test on this person’s
blood did you fallow the pracedures that you previously
descrived to the jury?

M5. MASON: Yes.

MS. HILTON: In conducting the test, did you discover
the presence of alcobol in Myrtis James, aleo inown as James
Myrtis’ blood?

M5. MASON: Yes.

M5. MILTON: After you perforned the tests on this
blood semple, did you reach & oonclusion &s to the guantity
of alcohol ethanol?

CR-TMED STATEOF NEVADA v JAVI R B Laatn Tiown, Trmmarshos e

M5. MASON: Oh okay. 50 it would be a range from point
two ix thres (o a poiot Lwo = lels »ee, Lwo siue one,

MS. HTLTON: Aad would both of Lhose numbers still be
above Zero point zerv sight?

ME. MASON: Correct.

NS, HILTON: What does it mean on the Forengic Report
Miz= Nazon where it zays G =slazh cne hundred M L7

MS. MASON: That’s thae unit for which tha - the -
excuse me, I'm sorry, Lhe resulls i1s teporled.

5. HILTCH: And what do the - What 15 G and N L YeTer
to?

NS, NASON: Those show grams is like a weight, and
then nilliliters iz a volume.

N5, BILTCON: So is5 Lt saying grans per one hundred
milliliters?

K5, NASCH: Yes,

M5, NILTCH: So in common cor lengths, we refer to
gomeone ag being above a point zero eight., I8 this the
noasurement, this qgrans per one milliliters that tells that?
I that how we mensure this?

ME. MASON: Yes.

M5, HILYON: So looking at in general, and I know you
can't talk absut specific people, but genoral what 30Kt of
outmnrd phyxical manifestations would accecne with an ethanol

CK RS STATRGENEVADN W IAER ke Linsts Dwvicn, Traeseri: 125
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NS. MASCH: Yes.

MS, HILTON: And what was that finding?

NS. MASON: kthanol in the apount of zeco polol Lwo
seven seven grans per one hundred milliliters plus or minus
zero point zero one four grams per one hundred milliliters.

NS, HILTON: Jnd what does point two seven geven, what
does that number mean in relation to the blood alcohol?

NS, MASON: 1'm not quite smure what you’re asking.

M5. HILTON: What does that number reflect?

M5, MASON: It reflects thal Che person had ethanol in
their blood.

ME. NILTON: In ThaT amount:

N3, MASOM: Corxect.

MS. HILTON: Is point Lwo seven above a IZero point
zera clght?

NS, NASON: Yes.

NS, HILTON: You previouzly talked aboul o margin ol
orror of - in thiz case plus or minus pPOint Zarc ona point
zore one four, Given that what results wonld ib SLill ba i
rango of, if that mskes sense? So if you -

M5, MASON: 1m not quite sure what you're asking.

M5. MILTON: So what does comparotively to point two
seven saven, what number would be gowd if we plus or minus
point zero one four?

AR08 STATE OF MINAIDA v JIAMES S Lande Dwoce, Irsmsorder w

level of point two seven seven be exhibiting?

ME. MASON: They could exhibit bloodshot eyes, slurred
speech, trouble with balance and or coordinotion.

MS. HILTON: Your Homoxr at this time 1 would move to
publish State’s Exhibit Four to the jury.

THE COUKT: Any objecticn counsel?

MR, SEARE: Mo Your Monor.

THE COURY: Okay. Sc ordared.

MS. MILTON: May I approach?

THE COUKT: You may. Miss Hilton a5 you probably saw
Mr. Johnszon did come into the courtroom. Do you need him for
any assistance like prasently or just standby?

M5. HILTON: Maybe just on standby since we were kind
of baving some freczlng lusucs.

THE COURT: All right. All right. Thank you.

M3, HILTON: 1€ that happens again I1°m hoping he help
us yectify it

THE COURT: Thank you,

MS. HTLTON: Tn this (unintelligible word - mic nolse}

the jury’s just looking at the exhihit, Kay ¥ approsch Your

Uenor?

THE COURT: You may.

NS, HILTON: Mias Msson is your forwnszic report also o
declaration?

CN-19ANTF STATE OF NEVADA va IS MIS-2520 L Dovis, Traucrber =
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M5. MASON: Yes.

M5. HILTON: And what la it smant by declaration?
What does IL mean when you siqn this?

M. MASON: That I stend by my zesulis,

M5, HILTON: And what does the langquage above your
signature stata?

N5, MASON: T declare undor penalty of perjury that
Lthe foregoing is true and correct.

NS, EILTCN: 1’11 pass the witness Your Honor.

TEZ COURY: Cross-examination Nr, Sears?

MR. SEARS: The only questlons I would bave wonld be
irrelovant Your Homor.

THE COUET: Okay. X¥o cross. Is the Witlhess cxcused?

MS. HILTON: She is Your Monor.

TUE COURT: Thank yon Miss Nasen. This concludes your
Lestimony in this matter and you’re excused from the case.

N5, NASON: Okay thank you. Kave a good day.

NS, RYLTCMN: Thank you Your Heaor and At thiz time the
State has no further wilnesses and the Stale rests.

THX COURT: Ckay. Thank you. At this tism ladics ond
geatlemen we’ve going te take an brief break zo we’ll allew
¥ou to take a - a shoxt recess. I':m going to read you the
admonition and ihen we’ll go forward. During this recess,
you must not discuss or csemunicate with anyone including

C2 L0008 STATE OF NEVAIA we JAMES UL N Lnda wvecn, Tommmus dus "o

MR, JAMES: Yes.

THE COURT: All right. Very well. Then at this Line do
you want te take & little further roocuys Mr. Sears?

NI, SEARS: Yes Your Monox.

THE COIRT: Yeah, lets continus on and take about a
Ten minute recexs or fifteen ninute zaecess -

MR. SEARS: Thank yeu.

THE COURT: Aud than wa’ll go Torward with this case.

M

cight. Court’s in recess.

BAILINY; ALl rlse.

BAILIFF: All rise.

THE COURT: Court’s in session please be seated, Ha
axe Lo the continuation of the case, We have the Defendant
Nr, James, his counsel M:. Sears presel, Slale’sc counsel Mias
Eilton and the pregence ol all of our jurors in the jury box.
Mr. Sears, The Delaanse caza.

MR. S2ARS: Yes, thank you Your Momor. We'll <all
Myrtiz T, James to the staand.

THE COURT: Qkay. Mr, Janes please cone forward befors
the witness - or belore the Clerk, excuae we, Lhios we’ll have
you raize your right hand and the Clexk will nominizter an
oath to you sir.

CLERK: Do you solennly swear the testimony you are
abour to provide in this matter before the Court shall be the

O ISEXE ETATEOF NEVADA wo SANVS LA B et Thuscicw, Trmsariae e
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tallow jurors in anyway regarding this case or its merits
either by voice, pbone, esall, text, internet or oTher MOARS
of communication or social madia. Do not read, watch or
11sTen To any news or pedis accounts or commentary about the
case, do not & any research such as consulting dictionaries,
using Lhe ioternet, using reference meterisls wlih respect to
thiz matter. Do not make any investigation, test any theory
of the cage, recreate any aspect of tho case or in any other
way investigate or learn about the case on youx own, and
£inally do not form or express any cpinion regarding this
case until it is Lisally submitted to you. 5o we’ll take a
briar roecoss. We'll allow you T0 go ahead angé ¢Xit has you
bave in tbe past and then we’ll bring you back In shortly.

m‘ COURT: ... OUr Casd outside Lhe prezence of the
jury. Me hawe Mr. James, Mr. James’ counsel, and the State’s
wounse] present. At this tine since tha State has rested in
Lthis case, thea it goes forward To the Defensc case and Mo.
James I’m sure you'we consulted with Sears oa thiz bul you
have the right to testify or not. Thal (& your sole - sole
decision in Lhs case. It's your decision alane. T you choose
10 Lestify in this case then you’li bz aubject Lo cross-
examination by the State of Nevada wWiTh Yespest 1o any of
your testimony in thiis case and xo I just want to advise you
of that and do you understand that right?

CHISIMIE FTATE OF KTVATMA v JAMES  sw bl Lamde L, Ty "

Truth, the whole Tiulh aod nothing but the truth, 50 help you
Cad?

MR. JAMES: T do.

THE COURT: Yes. Pleaze have a seat to tha wilness
stand on my right. And then Mr. James before you stars just
stale your full name and then spell your last name for Che
roecord air,

MR, JmMES: Myrtis T, Jesws, J-A-M-E - 5.

THE COURT: Thank you. Mr, Seare you can go forward.

MR. SFRRS: Thank you Your Honor. 1’:m going Lo get my
zeport (unintelligible words - faint recording). Have you
aver told someone that you're names was James T. Nyrtis?

MR. JAMES: Mo.

MR. SEARS: Is Lhal your pame?

MR, JAMES: No.

NK. SEARS: Doex it drive you a little crazy that
cverybedy gets it backwards?

MK, JAMES: Yup.

MR. SEARS: How long bas Lhal beea golog on forz?

MR. JAMES: A lang Line.

MR. STARS: Whore do you reaide nowd

MR. JAMES: Mow? Saint George, Utah.

MR. SEARS: And how long have you lived in Saint
George?

AN 1908 STATE OF NIVADA v JaMUS ATsancEn Tiwls Dovion, Dmascriber el
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NR. JAMES: Approximately thirty years.

NE. SEARS: And you’ye married?

NE. JAMES: Yes,

N, SEARS: and your wife iz here in the courtyaom?

MR. JRES: Yes.

MR, SEARS: Jnd you have children?

MR. JAES: Yes,

MR. SEARS: How many children?

MR. JRMES: Six.

MR, SEARS: How long bave you two bean togathar?

MR. JANES: Thirty plug years.

MR, SEALS: Okay. And how long = and = and you’ve
beer in Saint George for thel same anount of time?

MR. JIMES: Prettly closa.

MR, SEARS: And whal’s your occupation?

MR, JAMES: I'm an clectrician by trade.

NR. SEARS: And how leng have you been an electrician?

MR, JAMES: Twenty plus years.

MR, SEARS: And what educstion have you bad?

NR. JAMES: Sone college (unintelligible word= Mr.
Sears apuskiog alsoe) xtudent.

MR, SEARS: Mhere did you - where did you go Lo
college?

MR. JANES: Saint George, Utah.

CK IAOES SIATRGF NONADN v JAIR MRt Liwts Dhewion, Trmauridor "

Lwenty eighteen. Prior ro rwenty eighteen how many years haod
you worked as an cleclrician?

MR, JAMES: Nost of the year then.

MR, SEARS: No. No. Prior Lo twealy elgbleen, bhow
nany years haa you been an electrician?

MR, JAMES: Before that eighteen.

MR. SEARE: Eightesn year?

MR. JANES: Sevantaan YoArs, yeah,

MR. SEARS: Naw in = and bad most of that time had you
been working in the Utah arca?

MR. JAMES: Yes,

MR, SEARS: All right. So what bappened that you
storted working elsewhere?

MR. J S: T topped cut, ! couldn’l muke any more
mongy where I was at home g0 1 started travellng for work.

M. SEMRS: Okey. And where did you initially travel
Tor work?

MR. JAMES: Salt Take and Vegas, California.

MR. SEARS: Anc where were you working lmmediately
before you coming Lo Ely?

MR. JANES: I was warking in Vicrorville, Califvrals.

MR, SEARS: And wbal were you dolng there?

MR. JANES: T was dolng electrical fField, the same
thing for & cement plant.
Lomde D, Tinmwido 406
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MR. SEARS: Okay. Did you get a degree?
MR, JANES: No. [ bailed out absut thirgd year in and I

MR, SEARS: How come?

MR, JAMES: 1 just got tired of sclwol.

MR, SEARS: Okoy.

MNt. JAMES: But [ got huge credits to get my -

MR, SEARRS: A. A.?

NIt. JAMES: A. A. Yeah.

MR. SEARS: And then so then what did you do after
college?

MM, JAMESD 1 worked for a bit then decided Lo De an
eleclrician.

MR. SEARS: And so what do you have te do in Utab in
ordey To become an eleclrician?

MR. JAMES: Do four yeers of school at Che sewme Lige
for two thougzand hours of electricsal on-hand out in the
field.

MR. SEARS: Did you do all of than?

MR. JAMES: Yes.

Mie, sEARN: and did you receivwe a license as a - a
electrician in Urah?

MR, JAMES: Yes,

MR. SEARS: Okay. Now I want to bring you up to about

TR-19WOA STATE OF NITVADA v JAMIS AueavaEn e Dwvws, Tomnsss fwr m

MR. SEARS: Now, when you do electrical work whal kind
of electrical work 3o you do?

MR, JAMES: Anyrhing in all electrical, all pheses,
commmrcial, resldentlsl, lindustrial.

MR. SEARS: Okay. fn California were you doing high
voltoge work?

M. JRES: Yex.

MR. CEARS: Jnd tell me what high voltage work is.

MR. JAMES: Thirteen KO, twenty-rive KDA'g kilowolts
(unintelligible woed] Lig powes lioes coming 1o ond oul -

ML, SEAKS: Okay.

MR, JRAMES: - yellow preserve.

MR. SEARS: And T’m assuming LU takes a certain amount
of experience to do that?

MM, JANES: Yes.

MR. SEARS: Aud is thal tha sama kind of work that you
were doing at the mine here?

MR. JRMES: Yes.

Nit, SEARS: Okey. 5o why did you leave your
Vietorville job?

ME. JAMES: An, I got tranaferrad. Thara ware too
rany people working there so they werae taking volusteers,

M. SEARS: Jnd did you hswe an option of where you
wanted to go?

ORI STATL OF XIVADA wi. JANDS Seiwag Ll D, Trmmmersior w
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NR. JAMES: Yes.

ML, SEARS: And - ard 50 you picked Ely?

Mi. JAMES: Yeeh because Bly hes a lillle Bit less
spotted Trav - lezs travel Zor mg.

MR. SEARS: Okay. And it would have been cloper to
your residence?

MR. JANES: Yes.

MK, SEARS: At that time your residence was still in -

ME. JAMES: Yes,.

NR, SEARS: Okay. So approximately when did you come
T0 Ely before Lhe December the eighteenth of twenly eighteen
when you gol. werantod?

MR. JAMES: I beliecve October or Seplenber.

¥R, SZIARS: Okay. &0 you had been here a coupla of
montha?

MR. JAMES: Yes,

MR, SEARS: All zight? During that period wax your
wife continuing to realde regularly in Saint George?

HR. JAMES: Yes.

MR. SEARS: Ukay. And dld something happen Chal

caused Lhal toe change?

MR. SRARS: What happened?
MR, JAMES: My nothar-in-law waz on her death bed.

R IMWIC XTATH OF KEVADA v Jates Sre oAt Lamde U wor, Trmmmasdons "

you were here, why were you living in your car?

MR, JEAMES: What ! wes making T was gending it back to
her so she could travel back and forth.

MR. SEARS: Okay. During most of your marriage were
you marriad?

M. JAMES: Yes.

MR. SRMAS: I'm sorry. Was she working?

NR. JAMES: Most of it but she bad qult because of the
condition with he: mom and that we had lost our son pricy 1o
thaz, one sonth prior to that the yeay before.

MR, SEARS: Okay. Sorry about that.

M. JAMES: Thank you.

KE. SEARS: And sc that changed ber working situarion?

Mi. JAMBRS: Yes.

HMR. SEARS: And it changed your fipancisl situation?

MR. JANES: Yes.

MR. SEARS: Did that tinmencial change was that part of
lhe reason you wenl and began working ia California?

NR, JAMES: Yes.

MR, SEARS: Il xight. And you - you just make more
daugh?

MR. JAMES: Yeah T just make noze on the road, yeah.

MR. SEARS: Okay. Approximately how long were you
ilving in your car when yon were in Ely working?

CROASA2E STATR U6 NEVAI v, AMIS AaaNeg Finle Do, Tramerthor -
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MR. SEARS: Okay. And whore did she rezide?

MR. JAMES: In Arizona.

MR, SEARS: So what happened to your wifte’s residence
then when your nother-in-law was dying, when her nmom wns
dying?

ME. JAES: She conatantly {unintelligible words)
every weckend Lo cuze for har on the wockends.

MR, SEARS: And what was going on with the kids?

MR. JAMES: They were at home. She just took the
little ones.

MR. SEARS: Okay.

MR, JAMES: The Older onos stayed at the bouse in
Saint George.

Mi. SEARS: And the what would the commute have been
for your wife from Salul George Lo wherever your moTher=in=
law lives?

MR. JAMES: Aboul seven hours,

MR. SEARS: Okay. So you'rxe here and she’s commuting
back and forth Lo -

NR. JAMES: Yea.

MR. SEARS: That soundx like - 1z that the Four
Corticzs area?

MR. JAMES: Yes.

MR, SEARS: Okay. To deal with her motber, So when

LX-DONDE STATECF NEVADA v AN BRI E L il Do, Trcweriber (e

MR, JRMES: About the sane anount of time T arrived,
about twn months.

MR. SEMRS: COkay. Did you ever go stay in a motel?

MR. JMMES: No.

MR. SEARS: Okay. Ind your wife cona and vigit
occasionally?

MR, JAMES: Yes.

MR. SEARS: And what would you do then?

MR. JRMES: We would stay at LaQuinta.

WR. SPARES: Okay.

MR. JAMES: On the weekends.

MR. SEARS: All right. And then well that brings a
question about your ghift. 5o what kind of a shift did you
work at the mine?

NR. JAMES: Um, usually the day =hift, About four to

six.
MR, SEARS: Okay. And ao how did you get to the mine?
MR, JAMES: We traveled in a van or a bus.
MR, SEARS: And where Would you = where would you get
the bus?

Nit. JAMES: ‘The mine provided it for us. It was parked
nver behind the Chevion an tho main street.

MR. SEARS: Okay.

MR. JANES: on the main street coming in,

AN STATECE MEVADA w JANLS 399 130m2) Lda Dwon, Tramsariver i
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NER. SEMRS: Okay. By McDonalds?

MR, JRES: Yeah,

MR, $EARS: And 5o you’d go To Mclonalds, get in the

bus, go Lo the mine correct?

MR, JRMES: Yes.

MR. SEARS: And then what did you & during the day?

Whot - what - well tell me about what Line dig you get To the
mine?

NR. SAMES: It was about an hour and a half travel. We
got there. We left about four thirty, five, goT Chere about
&ix, seven.

MP. SEARS: Okay. And then working with high voltage
squipaent?

MR. JANES: Yes.

MR. SEARS: And then you bad a crew cab ar sanething

Ni. JAMES: Yeel. Yeall, thare wag & Crew of us.
MR. SEARS; Chay.
MH. JAMES: Four po¢pie per truck basically,

S: ALl right. JAnd then did your high weltege
wark?

MR. JAMES: Yes.

ME. SEARS: And Was thal in support of the shovels or
somathing?

QNSNS STATE CF KEVATIA v JAMES TSI Tindda oo, Ui e

it bome?

MR, JAMES: Yeah, duripg that time.

MR. SEARS: Okay. And the mine - (he company that you
worked fo:, Lhay paid you & per dlem?

MR. JAMES: Yes.

ME. SEARS: Okay,

NR, JAMES: BMat mainly I sent it hone.

MH. SEARS: Sure. Where would you sleep in your car
whati you were nere for that four 1o five days or so?

MR, JAMEE: [ started out at Love's and a couple of
qas staticus, = couple behind the motel down Town by the gyn.

MR. SRARS: And had you ewer had any trouble with the
police prior to the Decemher the eightesnth when vou got
arrested?

ME. JARES: Nona whatszoovor,

MR. SEARS: Okay. On the elghteenth, you get off work,
what happens next?

MR, JAMES: I get in the car, T go to the gym. T work
out. That lady used to keep (umintalligiblo words) for me
because aometines they come back after six and she’ll stay a
fow nivules et then lot me in.

MR. SEARS;: Ckay.

MR. JAMES: And worK oul for about an hour and shower.

MR. SERAS: And tThen what?
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Lenporarily just on a start-

fanmily.

California as well?

MR, JAMES: Yes.

living in your cor?

MR. JAMES: Yes.

out,

you do here?

made sandwiches.

TR PMOME CTATECM AIVADA v TANES

Dollar. 1 parked. T waz go
NR, SEARS: Okay.

for my lunch tLhe pext day.

that from Family Doller?
MR. JAMES: Because

=iz, you Koow,

MR, JAMES: Yeah.

MR, JAMES: Yeah.

MR. SEARS: Okay.

shots with dinner?
NR. JAMES: Yeah.

ORI STATH OF NEVADA w TAVES

MR, JAMES: Ah, we just did - move ganerators

UP. Moved 34 1ol of generators so

the other guys could work and do thels job,

M. JAMES: Yeah. Provided power.,

NR, SEARS: And so you provided powar far the workers?

MR. SEARS: And where are you living now?
MR, JAMES: Back home in Saint George with some

MR. SEARS: Okay. Had you lives in your car in

MR, SOARS: had 50 you developed SOrT of & rouline of

MR, SEARS: Where did you keap your clothes?

MR. JAMES: In the backseat of my car.

MR. SEARS: And then how did you arrange for food?
MR, JAMES: Well (unintelligible words) 3o we = I age
NE, SEARS: Okay. And when you came to Hly what did

MR. JAMES: The some thing, McDonalds, bought food,

MR, SEARS: Okay. Your goal was Lo save mooey and sent

LR LS Lirwin Dhamn. Vs e R0

ing Lo gel saome -

MR, JAMES: And than went to Ridley’s. got dinner.

MR, SEARS: And then what did you do then?

MR, JAES: 1 bad @ shol or two with @y dinner.

MR. SEARS: Do YoU remenber what you ate that night?
MR. JAMES: I believe it was hot wings and bread.

MR. SEARS: Okay. And then what 43d you do after that?

MR, JANES: And then T just wont over to Family

ME. JRES: - {unintelllgible word) somerthing to eat

ME. SERRS; And why would you Qo get something 1lke

it’s cheap. TIt’s all a dollar

utensils and your bowls and that sruff all?

ME. SEARS: Okay. And did you - 3o would you buy your

M. SEARG: Znd Lhen throw 1T away whes you’ re done?

S0 you said you had a couple of

R SR

MR, SEARS: How do you know it was & shot?
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MR. JANES: I just measured il by eyeball 1 guess.

WR. SEARS: Okay. And is that your zouline regularly?

M. JAES: Yeah, fairly but not all the Line.

MR, SEARS: Ckay. So occasionally you’ll have x xhol?

MR, JAMES: Un hoe,

HR. SEAR5: To you have Lo have your wils sboul you at
work?

¢ ME. JRMES: I'n nol sure what you mean.

MR, SEARS: Well can you be dealing with high vaoltage
work when yeou're drunk?

NR. JAMES: No.

MR, SEARS: whal happens il you do?

MR. JANES: You dle. Bad things bapgen.

MR. SZARS: Okay. So, om this occasion after you go
the Dollar Store 4id you o in and buy sonathing ir the
Dollur Store?

MR. JAMES: Yea. I grabbed a couple of things, wont
back in the car.

MR, SEARS: Okny.

MR. JAMES: Tt’d been about nine, nine thirty.
MR, SERKRS: And then what?

MR, JAMES: | Just declded to stay Lhere.
MR. SEARS: So you zeclined your seat?
MR. JAMES: The scat was reclined to take a nmap.

CF IVLESE NLATL U NVALLW AOES NS0T Liie T fon, Tt 1

License, what d¢id you think?
NE. JAMES: Ah, I’n golng to jail,
MK, SEARS: Okay. And 50 whal dld you do?
MR, JAMES: I just = what Dottle I had left I finlshed
NE. SEARS: Okay. What did you bave left?
MR, JANES: Juat aboul heve of that pint.
MR. SEXRS: Of what?
MR, JAMES: T Lhink that it was vodka.
MR. SEARS: S0 you chugged §t?
MR. JAMES: 1 chugged the bottle.
MR. SEZARS: And was be standing by or was he gona?
MR, JANES: I nelieve he was back there checking my
I. D.
M2, SEARS: Okay. And so you chugged the bortie?
MR. JRANES: Yeal.
MR, SEARS: Or what was left of it?
MR. JAMES: Yes.
MR, SEARS: Okay. And than what happened?
MR, JAMES: I jJustT waited for him to come back?
M. SEARS: Okay. Was that a wise declislon?
MR. JAMES: I bellieve go.
MR. SEARS: Okay. You weren’t going to go anywhere?
MR. JANES: Mo, I’m like I didn’t want to cause
RRLR LS )
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MR,
Mic.

SEARS:
JAMES :

SEARS :

Okay.
Tired.
And then how close was Lhe Dollar Store

location to where you got plcked up?

atyeat.

MR, JAMES: Just & black or not even two hlocks up The

M2, SEARS: Okay. Se you got out of the vehicle, it

Was & GRr you were driving, 13 that rightz

you up?

MR,
MR.
MR.

M.

JAMES
SEARS:
JANES:
BEAKED

Jara:

Ten.

S, U, V. or samething like that?

A good size car.

And then gel on Lhe bus toe go to work?
Yes.

What did you think when Officer Shady woke

: Ah, he caught mo al!l surprized. 2'=: 2like

usually T have like strangers or somebody knock on ny door

whan 1 was like at Love’s or somsthing, wake me up to want

sommthing oz asking for help and 1 just zhaok mo like shaking
somebody’ s waking up.
MR. SEARS: Okay. Did you recognize that be was a

police officer immediately?

UM BN ETATY CF ASIVAIMA we. LA B

MR,

MNR. SEARS: Okay.

JAMES:

Yeah.
Now when be left after ba took your

Linda Diwwin, Tramaerfu 1w

anymore Lrouble than T was alzeady ia.

MR. SEARS: Okay.

1 understand. When you got to tha

mine in the »morning during Lbal period, what was it like?

snow.

set up as you could

wife?

MR. JAMES: Cold. Muddy (uniatelligible words) to the

It was possible conditions we work in.

MR. SEARS: 50 4t Lhe end of the day were you tired?

MH.

MR.

M.

JAMES

SEARS:

JaeEST

the Deollaxr Store?

MK,

MR.

JAMIS

SEARS:

Yeah.

Did you atteapt to have your car as well
bave in texms of liwing in it?

i thought &o.

Okay. S0 it was - LU was survival?

Yes.

And how did you communicate wilh your

¢ Ah, we text.

Okay. And wos that everyday?

Everyday before work, after work, sure.
And did you Laxt with hexr that night.

T believe so. Of course we did.

Did anybady tell you you couldn’T park at

Ho,

Hlad anybady kicked you out of any of the

other locations where you parked and slept?

M IS STALE OF NEVALA v IAMES

Ve A L e el e




®» 3 N A & W

o

BB

L

L Y S

© & g

MR. JAMES: Ummn, I don’t think so,

Nit. SEARS: Qkay. When the olflcer asked you had you
drunk that night, what wag your response?

MR. JAES: T'nm drunk. {(Unintelligable woxds),

MR. SEARE: Okay. And was that in parl because of whal
yeu just slugged?

MR. JAMES: Yes.

MR, SEANS: So when you said guit & bit, was that what
what you were referring to7

MR. JAMES: Yes.

MR. SEASS: Are you 3Lill employed at the mipe?

MR, TNEE: No. I gol laild off like -

MR. SEARS: All right.

MR, JAMES: - lasl SumDmer.

MR. SEARS: 5¢ Then where are you working now?

MK. JAMES: Back in faint Ceorge.

NH. SEARS: Same work that you'we always done?

M. JARXKS: Kiectrical field, Yes.

MR. SERRS: Ckay. Court’s indulgence?

THE COURT: You may.

MR. 3ZAns: Did anybody ever Tell yeu that if yom
slept in the driver’s seat in your car and you drank veu'd
get arrented?

NI, JAMES: No.

CRAIMIR STATH OF NEVADA ve JAMES Arroaas Lande Davcn. Vrmmundos L

your claim that yen chugged the alcohol while the police
officer was parked behind you running your license, 15 that
your claim?

KR, JAMES: Yes.

MS. EILTOM: Isn‘t It true that even before that yaou
had alreedy struggled re find a driver’s license that yeu
Just put in your wallet?

MR. JAMES: Yes.

M3, HILTON: Ts Lt coz - did T hear you correctly when
you seid you drank your shols with dinner pricr 1o yuing to
¥emily Dollar?

MR. JAES: Yes.

5. NILTON: You teld Sargeant Shady Lbat you wWere
operating Lhe moter wehicle, correet?

ME. JANES: Follow the question.

MS. HILTON: It'c a yes oY no quextion., Vid you tell
Officer Shady that you were operating the motor wehicla, yes
0L no?

MR, JAMES: No, sol at the time.

M5. MILTON: Did wou - did you see Lhe body cam that
played here?

MR. JMMES: Yos.

M5. EILTON: And 50 you’re saying that you did not
tell Office Shady thal you were OPeYating lhe vehicle, is

CRINUSSE FTATRONNIVADA w TAMES S e Desicn, Trasacning "
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M. SEMRS: Did you know that?

MR. JAMES: I did not.

MR. SEARS: Would you have xlept momaplace else in
your cer if you’d of known?

Nit. JAMES: Um, 1 usually sleep in the passenger seal.

MR. SERRS: Okay.

MR. JMMES: When T park.

MR, SEARS: 2nd how come you didn’t that night?

MR. JAMES: T was just Lired.

MR, SRARS: Been a hazd day?

MR, JAMES: Yes.

Mz, SMARS: Pasc Lhe witnena.

TRE COURT: Crope-examination counsel?

M5. HILTON: Mr. Myrtis you said that you usually
sleep in the passenger geat, correct?

MR. JAMES: Yes.

MS. MILTON: Did you not in this case because you wWeve

MR, JAMES: No. (Unintelligible wozdx].

N5S. HILTON: And 86 you’re saying that you made that
decision Just because you were tired?

MR. JAMES: Yea (unintelligible words - speaking very
law] .

MY, HILTON: Isn’l it true Mr, James that even before

R PROMIE STATE U NUVALA w AN S LR M T indn Cwion. Trmsariar R

that what you’re saying?

MR, SEARS: I'm going to cbject just on the basis thar
it was vagua. Ffe talked to Shady on the video on two
dilfferent occasions. There was the initial contact and the
accond coutact, If zhe could clarify which cantact ghe’s
telking about.

THE COURYT: want to Lightes that up counsel?

M5. HILTON: Sure. So Mr. Jamoes you watched the widea,
There ware Lwo sections. During the seoond section isa’c it
rruo that you uben asked whother you wei= operabing the
vehicle, you said yos I wax?

MR, JAMES: Yas.

M5, HILTON: Tsn®t 1T TXue thal the wohicle was
running while you were parked sl Family Dollac?

MR. JAMES: Yes.

MU. KILTON: Ian’t it true Lual the $00r was 22

MR, JAMES: Yes.

MS. HILTON: Why was the door open?

MR. JAMES: T might have got hot trom the heates.

M5. BILTON: Why didn’t you just turs the haster off?

MH. JAMES: @ don’l Xknow.

MS. HILTON: You told Sergeant Shady thal you were
staying at the truck stop correct?

MR. JAMES: Yos.

R 1VSIUT STALL OF MUVADA v JAMTS sesscan Tiwks Dwrcin, Tommwsndor m
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M5, MILTON: You did not tell Sargeant Shady that you
ware staying at Pamily Dollar, correct?

MR. JAMES: Yeah, usually I park at Family Do = Loves.

M5, HILTON: Did ~ but you did not tell Sergeant Shady
Lhal you wece staying at fanily pollar -

ME, JAMES: No.

MS. EILTON: = correct? When Sergeant Shady as you
retmanber and as you observed oo Lhe vehlclie asked you to do
the second 8. F. 8. T. you said oh shit just take ne corvaect?

MR. JARES: Yeah, right.

ME. EILTOM: And then you also said T’m drunk, wou
know 1'm drunk, we’re all arunk, cozgect?

M. JAMES: Correct,

MS. HILYTON: I you were realiy staying at Family
Dollar, why wouldn’t you tell Sergeant Shacy that?

MR, JAMES: T - [ hadn’t - 1 was alraady too tived to
move the car and -

M5, HILTON: And no you just didn’t Tell him that?

MR, JRMES: Yeah.

NS, HILTON: Bat you’re claining that’s what you were
doing? When Sergeant Shady asked you how nmuch you had had to
drink your reecponse was probably quite & »it, correct?

MR, JRMES: Yes, afrer chugging.

. HILTON: 8ut even prier your clsim that you were

CRASCEN STATH OF KEVATIA va JAVERA Arkaios Tdwde Do i, Traesrun RS

NR. JAMES: Vesx,

N%., ULILTCN: Did you buy the alcohol at Ridley’s?

NR. JAMES: 1 believe it was Ircm the day hafoza.

MB. HILTON: BubL you dig not buy it at Family Dollar,
correct?

MR, JAMES: I don't think zo.

MS. KILTON: Would it be dangercus to work with high
voltage eguipment and k¢ under Lhe influence of alcchol?

MR. JANES: Yes.

ME, HILTON. And why la LhaLl?

NR. JANES: Just a motivatiopal skille I guess that’s
involved. Cutting [unintelligible worg).

NS, BILTON: And Mr. Janee you have = feleny
convictian carrest?

NE., JAMES: Yes.

NS. BILTGN: I°11 pass the witness Your Honor.

THE COURT: Thank you. Redirest counsel?

MN. SEARS: Nr. Jomes are you testifying taday?

MR. JAMES: Yes.

MR. SEARE: You're not elaiming anything aro you?

MR, JAMES: No.

M. SRARS: You're testiflyiog undes cath?

MR. JARMES: Yes.

NiK. SEARS: 1711 pezs Lbe witness.
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pounding - chugging I should say alechol while the cop was
seated in hiz vehicle right next to you even before that you
already couldn’t find your wallet correct, and you already
had an odor of alechol, cozzecl? And yet you’ra sbtill
claiming =

THN COUNT: & abead And leat him angwar, ans then
you’ll nead to answer lond in addition o your head nod sir,

MR, JANES: Reposl the queslion,

MS. HILTON: You’re claiming I was saying that you
even after you claim that you were chugging alcchol with the
cop right there, you still had trouble finding your iicense
Lhal you bad jusl put in your wallet, caorrect?

M. JAMES: Youx.

NS, NILTON: And so aro you claiming that you ware
chugging aleohol with the cop right there?

MR. JAMES: After he took my license.

M5. EILTON: That’s what you’re claiming?

MR, JAMES: Yes.

M. MILTON: Ducing the Lime Lhal Sergeant Shady had
your license was the wehicle - the vehicle was atill running
COYYRCT?

MR. JAMES: Cozrect.

M5, NWTILTON: Did wou have the shotec with your dinner
at Ridley’s?

LA SEALL s Trmnervin "

THRE COURT: Anything on Lbat counsel?

MS. HILTON: Yes Your Hanor. 5o just to be clear based
on that question, you are testifying that on Decenber
elghtesnth of twenly eighteen after Sergeant Shady had taken
your licence, you nmude the decision to chig aleahol in yoor
wvehicle with the police ciulac: parked vory close to you?
That's your testimony?

MR. JAMES: Nothing further Your Honox.

THE COURY: You may slep down.

MiC. SEAKE: Thank you Your Honor. befonye coxtn.

THE OOURT: Rebuttal counsel?

M5. BILTON: Ah, the State has no rebuttal Your Eomor,

TIRE COURT: Ohay. Todies and gentlemen that coacludes
tho ovidentiary portion of our case this morning and ar thia
Lipe we’ze golng Lo take a recess. We’l11 take our noaon
receas a 1ittle bit early and it’ 11 it’l]l probably be about
an hour and & half to two hours approximately for the recess
and the reason for Lhal is that during this time the Court
and counsel will be settling on the balanoe of the fury
inatructiona that are going Lo be submitted to you for yousr
conaideration in addition to the first saven that that I read
Lo you, o0 LT takes a little DIt of Lime Lo vresle those
instructions. We're going make copies for wveryone as well

and 50 we — we want to go ahead and allow you Lo have o
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sufficient amount of time actually for us Lo get our job done
£0 that you’re not just sitting bere waiting for us ond so at
thisd Lime ity cleven ¢'clock, counsel you Lhink we can
raconvend al one ¢'clock?

M5. HILTON: T think so Your Honox.

THE COURT: Mc. Sears at one tharty?

MR, SEARS: I - I would rathar do one thirty if its
okay.

TEE COURT: Then we’ll go Lo ooe thirty. Its going o
be about two and 2 halt nours, so 1f you heve other personal
business matters you can certainly g¢ ahead and do then
ducing this - during this Dreak and Lhen we’l) come back,
wa'll have closing arguments and then the matter will be
subnitted to you for your daliberation. So during this
zacass ladias and gontlemen, you nust not diacuss oy
communicate with anyone inciuding fellew jurorx in anyway
regarding the case or its mexits ¢ither by voice, phone,
ciall, Lext, internate - internet or other means of
commanication or social wadia. Do not read, watch or listen
TO any nens or media accounts or commentary about the case,
do not do any research suck as comauliing dictionaries, using
the internel, usxing referance materials. Do not nake any
lnvestigation, test any theorles ol Lhe case, recreate any
aspect ol Lhe case or in any other way investigate or learn

R M STATE CF NEVALN v JAMES Bl o) R e

wludad to yesterdsy afterncon, we dizcusased briefly in Court.
The Court’s had an oppertunity te 1¢ok at that instruetion
thiz marning and T believe State’s counsal has &4 copy of thatl
a5 well g0 we can - if thara are any othor instruotion, get
then to me.

Mk, SMARS: Okay.

TEE COURT: Okay? if you have them, 1T you can just
bring them over to the Ucurt in Chanbers and provide one
arcther copies of Lhose instructions $o that we can tully
discusa then when we vome back. So why don’t we take a break
until about eleven forty-five you know about thisty-five
minutes or so and then we’ll go¢ forward and discuss the
instructions.

¥R. SEARS: Thank you Your Hopor.

THE COURT: Court’s in recess.

BAILIZF: All rise.

BAILIFF: All rise.

TEE COURT: Couxt’s in session pleace be neated. letr
the record reflect that we’re present in Court n continuation
of our jury trial. Only the attorneys Mr. Sears and Misa
Hilton are present in Court tov seitle jury instructions at
thin time, (Jury inotructions not requasted to be
transcribed) . 15 there a request that the inslructions the
Jury be iastructed prior to argunenl, Lhal the instrocrions
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211 James App App

O M W s W N -

- -
- O

-
~

13

O % =) S W s ww

21

]

arout the case on your own, ané Tinally do Bot form oy
express any opinion regarding this case until Lhe saller is
Tfinally subnitied Lo you. 50 we”ll allow you Lo go about your
affairs for about two and a half hours and if you’ll conme
back about one fifteen, we’ll try to be timely and oo forxward
with the balence of the case so Lhe Courl will be in recess.
We’ll allow you to leave. T'm golng to zemain on the bench
for just a few Poments and discuss some matters with counsel.
Plenxe he xunted sveryone. At ths time of course we’ll go
abead and setile oo Lhe balance of the instroctions. If
you'd like to take = if you need some additional time to look
at the instructionz or the proposed instructlons, you can -
we can certainly do that. what do you think about hal? an
hour?

MR. SENRS: That woszks for m¢ Your Bonor,

THE COTRT: Then we’ll go forward and 1’11 consider -
Lthe Court has already crafted same instructicns. If there are
additional instructions and I know Lhe State hos ~ has
fubmitted proposed jury inctructions, some of which 29 the
Court indicated yesterday were similar to tha Court’s. Some
the Court did not Include in the Courl’s package and 50 any
of those that the State wants to offc: in addition Lo what
the Court has already, you cestainly may ¢¢ 30, The Defense
counzel has submitted & proposed jury instruction that he

RIS STATE OF NEVALA ve JSS sue Fomda mrvven Svnmssrter "

be - the instructions be read to tha jury prior to closing
argument?

ME. NILTON: Yea Your Honorx,

MR, SEARS: Yes Your Tonor.

THE COURT: Okay. Both counsel bave indicated. So are
there any other mattars that need te be sddrossed at thic
Lime before we take our recess Lo have them copied?

MS. HILTON: No Your Homor.

THE COURT: Okay. Then the Court will have thirteco
copies made. 1 will not make additlional copies for yourselves
or Lhe Courl bubt we’ll take a recess. AS S0ah 4% We have the
thirteen copies, we’ll let Mz. Ringueberg know and we’ll
brang the jury beck and we’ll go forward, probably Lake aboul
ten or fifteen minutes. All right. Court’z in rocoss.

BAILIFF: All xise.

BAILITT: ML rice.

THE COURT: Court’s in session please be scated. Let
Lhe record reflect that we're in tha coatinvation of our jury
Lrial, We have the prezence of Lhe Defendant, Defendant’s
counsel, the State and the State’s counael, presence of all
of the jurors ln Lhe jury box. ladies and gentlemen, you have
been provided with copies of the jury instructions in thiz
cage and at this time the Court is going to read the jury
dinstructicns Lhel I did oot previonaly zeed Lu you. You can
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follow along Lf you’d like and read then or wou don’t have
to. They'lil of course, you can take tham with you during
deliberations. (Jury instructions not requasted o be
trangscribed) . Nith respect o closing argumant then, Mias
Hilton?

M5. HILTCHM: Thank you Your Homor. Ladies and
gentiensn, through the ovidence presented in this case, the
Stale has proven beyoad a reasopable doubl thal the Defendunt
Hes Lo actual physical centrel of s vehicle while heing under
the influence oI intoxicating liguor or that he was tound Ly
negsuremenl withio Lwo hours of belng io aclusl physical
CONTXol Oof The vehicle ©o Bave a Concentration of aloohol of
point zerc eight or more in his blocd. Ihe State has also
shoun that this occurred on a premises to which the public
has acoass, the Family Dollar parking lot, Through the
sestinony of Sergeant Luke Shady, the State has shown that
this offense occurred on Decenber eighteenth of twenty
eighteen at approximately eleven twelve p.m. The State bas
shown that the person Involved In this case, Lhe Delendant,
Myrtis James, AKA James Myrytis. Sergeant Shady testified thet
tha Defendant’s vehicle was in the Family Dollar parking lot
which is o premises to which the public con access, and he
testified that the public can access that parking lot ¢ither
through the entrance on Great Basin or the entrance on Avenue

CK IS NEATKOF NEVAGUVL JAASSL  Six A L e

low Lhe Defendant wes unsble Lo follow iz Ziooer. You saw
an the body canm that when Sergeant Shady attempted to move
ante the next ¥, &, F, 7., the Defendant ztated oh mhit, juet
take me. Sergeant Shady asked if he wanted to continue and
he ctated just take me ip, I’m drunk, that’s all it ia. I'm
drunk, you know ['m drunk, we’re all drunk. Sergeant Shady’s
Dody can has been adnitted as an Exhibit in this case and you
can raview it onoe again during your deliberations,
Registered ¥urse 3randi Sunrall testified that she was called
TO COndueT a blocd draw on the Sefendant. She described The
procedure she followed and told us mbout the paperwork zhe
completed. She testified that the toxicology submittal form
which 1s State’s Exhibit Two and which you will have access
Lo wagz placed ln Lbe box with Lbe bleod Lubes. She testified
that The hlaad drvaw acccurred at twelive Ten a.m. on Decesber
nineteenth of twenty elghteen which is approximately fifty-
eight minutex after Jergeant Shady ohserved the Defendant in
actual physical control of tha vehicle in the Family Dollar
packing lot. Ceolmipalist Felicia Masoo testified about the
toste she completed on the Defendant’s blood. She teatified
about the ipportance of the control nunmber and that the
control numbers in this case matched, wWhen you look &t
Stata’s Ryhihits Two and Four this afternoon, you will be
able to se0 for youraelfl the control nusbers are the same.
Eiade Devien, Tramacrbar 140
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©. Sergesnt Shady testified that Lhe Defendant wes seated
behind the wheel in the driver’a scat and that the wehicle
was running. You also observed Lhis en his body cenera.
Sergeant Shady testified aboul iz Lirst interaction with the
Defendant in which he observed an odor of alcohol coming from
the Defendant, the Defendant’s slurred speach and the
Dufendant’2 bloodshot Watery eye. He testified at that tine
during that first interaction based on his training and
experience the Defendant appeared ta be intoxicated. During
this first interaction that Sergeant Shady Lestified about
and you observed on the body can video, he testified thal
although ne obsexved the Derfendant to put his wallct away,
the Defendanl gol oul ol his veblcle to fook in the trunk for
his identification. Ne testified that the Defendant stated
that he resides at the Truck Stop, that he was staying at the
Truck Stop. You saw that in the body cam when Sergesnt Shady
asked the Defendant where he was coming Crom, he seid Ely.
Sergeant Shady testified and you observed on his body camara
that he asked the pefendant whether he was operating the
motoYy wehicle and the Defendant’s response was yes I was.
Sergeant Shady asked the Delendant how much be had Lo drink
ond the Defondant stated probably quite a bit and that he was
drinking ligquor. Sergeant Shady testified that he attempted
to conduct F. §. ¥. T.z on tho Dofondant. Ho tostifiad about

LR LAY STALL OO RTVADA w Lo Rl b ) Tinda Dwvion. Tramserius "

Miss Mason testified that the vesult of the test showed that
the Defendantl’s bleod alcohol coutent was poinlt Uwo seven
zeven at the time of the blood draw. That £z over three times
zero point zero eight. 1°d like to draw your attentiom to
jury instruction elghteen which states the factors thal you
are to consider in determining whether the Defendant was in
actual physical control of the vehicle. It states that in
Gociding whather zomeone has exizting or prezent badily
restraint directing influence domination or regulation of a
wvehicle, You must weigh » nunber of congiderations including
but not limited %o and then it liats the following. The first
is what position the person is found in the wehicle and where
in Lhe velicle. Tn Lhis case, Lhe Delendant was sesled behiod
the wheel of the vehicle with the seat reclined. In this
poxition, bhe could have easily recommenced driving
particularly given the fact that the vehicle was running. The
next foctor is whether the vehicle’s engine fis running or
not. IT was in this casze. Thoe next factor is whother the
occupant 1s awake or asleep. He was asleep. Whether the
peraon ia apprehended ot night, the vehicle’s 1ighta are on,
there wWas no -~ you can se¢ in the video that they were aot
on, the locstion of the vehicle’s keys. Sergeant Shady
testified that the engine was running, presumably the keys
were in the wvehicle, and whesn Sergeant Shady asked him Lo

CR 1042 STATE OF KEVADW ve. LGS 20y et Ll Dharm, Transersher s




turn the vehicle off, he heard the dinging sound that Is
typically sssociated with someone Lurns their Key. Whether
the person was Lrying te move the vehicle or move the
wehicle. He did pot. Nhethor the property on which Lhe
vehicle is located 15 puhlic or private. Ladies and gentlemen
ia this case 11 wax n premises to which the public has
access. It was not a private drivewsy. fe waan’t paTieed in
front of his house in e privale driveway or on some kine of
private property. This wWas Lin Pamily Dollar parking lor. And
whether the person must of necessity have driven to the
location where apprebended. He must have given the locatlon
of Family Dollarx. zthmzmore, be adeitied Lo driving to
that locatlen. Yeu are the jury. You as the jury are o weigh
thasa factors. The jury instructicn alse indicates that the
presecos or absence of any single facltor is not conclusive
wncd Lhat the FACTOYsS are (o be weighed by you. In thiz caso
ladics and gentiemen, Lhie factors show that the Defendant was
in sctuel physical control of the vehicle. He was behind the
wheel, tha car was funning which means the keys were in the
igrition. Me was located ir & place the public bas sccess
0, not on a privete driiveway and Le musl by necessity have
ziven these. He must have driven on e public roadway to get
to the parking iot., Furthermore, be testified that he did.
Finally, jury fnstruction aumber tuwelve defined a reascnable

U AR STATEOF NEVADA s 1aagex Rl S M Ll s Tvemacriver L7

with hig job, it's time for your wosk to begin and your work
is deliheration, looking at the facts, thick about il, talk
abour it, comsider it, weigh them, sce how importent they are
in your deliberaticns. The Lirst thing iu wast to talk to you
about Lu what I'm going Lo call a lousy investigation. When
Kyxtis James got arrested and teken Lo the 1ai1l on Decesber
eightesnth, that’s what happened. Everyrody walked away.
IL's over. Decenber eighteenth twenty cightean, two und a
half years ago? So, fram Dacember eighteenth twenty elghilesn
until lety xny & month age, here Wags eVery OpporIunity to
conplete this investigatica. Did anvbody bother To do it? Mo,
Why an 1 saying it’s a lousy investigation? A couple of
things would pzobably have slitched this ¢ése up tighter that
a kit and it didn’t take any magic, no C. 5. I., ag
coasequential work, not hours, not days, bow aboutl twenty
minutes? Do you know what Lt would bave taken? A little shoe
leather, On the day after bis arvesi, all sonerody needed Lo
do was go like this, Xnock on the door and walk into the
Dollaxr Store and say you bave video of yesterday? Yeah,
Welve got video, Well let me leck at £t, Ckay. And They woulda
have watched Myrtis Jomes come in walk around, buy sorething
9L DOT. They <uuld hove gone up am! Lalked to Ue clerk who
was there. This guy, he came ian last night, Native Anerican,
long ponytail, dark skin, was he drunk? That would have been
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doubt. Deubt te bo reasonable must be actual, not mere
posaibility or speculation. The State has chown beyond any
rensonable doubt that the Defendant iu qullty of this
offense. Thank you.

THE coumr: Thank you. Mo, Sears closing?

MH. SEARS: Thank you Your lonor. Courct’s indulgenca?

TIHE COURT: You may.

MR, SEARS: Counsel, Your Eamor, ladies and gentlemen
of the jury, first thanks for coming. It's an important duty
and you hove now endured us for a day and a4 hall, there’s
more probably still Lo go. We appreciate your service., It
pays lousy. Bur 1T you don’t do it then an important part of
our constitutional rights as wall ag our systen of crimipal
justice getxz lost. The jury aystem ig important Lo us all,
and it’s imporcant to your and I‘n glad. I'm glad you're
willing to cope and - and o listen. Aad 50 I'm ¢oing TOo Txy
and stop talking at the same point when you stop listening. T
don't = I’m not always successful with that bul that’s qoing
to be my attespt so I'm not going Lo Lalk a long time. I'm
going to Lry and point out a few things that I think are
interesting and that you xhould pay attentloa te and think
About when you’re deliberating. Obviously T can’t centrol
that. Only you can. The State’s almosl completed with thels
jets, T'm almost done with my job, the Judge is almost done

CR-ISAICE STATE OF NEVAD v JAMIES MNEernz Limle Do, Tonmwieder e

the ¢nd of the case folks and We Wouldn‘T be here, and you
wouldn’ L be deliberating, bone of this would be going on, but
there was no invesrigation, nothing, na fellew-up, nothing.
It was just dropped. The case was dropped. Been dropped
for twa two yoars, two and a half yeazs. WNe’re going to
talk about Regers factors. You heard little bit about Rogers
factors (unintelligible word - speaking wvery low) and there’s
& bunch of il, iL's not an exclusive 11sT. 1T78 anything you
come up With that you think iz important as well as the list
in the jury instructions. Palicw nfficers, particularly ono
in this case who haa TWenly-lws yenrs of expsrience, didn’t
take any steps to establish any Rogers facter other Lhan what
he saw when he was there, when he arrested hin. Nobody else
did eny iavestigation of an of Lhe RKogers factors to give you
something to g0 on. We’ve got nothing. It wax just dropped.
They can’t even spell his name zight. When you look at the
documents that you see in this ceve, hic name is wrong every
time, T ssked Myrtis on the stand, have you ever gong by
Junes T. Myrtis and what waz the answer? No. Bat wa changos
his pene Lo Japes T. MYYTIS on every document we Lurned in to
zcawbody to do something with. They Just dida’L caze about
the case Lo get it right. That matrers. And I'm nat saying
anything bad sbout Deputy Shady. He’s tha Sergeant on duty.
Thera |s Delectives. He’s not the enly police officaer in that
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force who could have looked aL this case and done something.
Pu Lthey didgnn. T don’t koow why They dicn’i. MWe got that
fishy Affidawit thal T was conplaining stout. MNobody caraed
t¢ do it right. When you lock al the Rogers factors which you
= Which you’ve already hesrd and so I'm not going to belabor
that too much, there’s a gerics of notz that I wanb you Lo
think sbsut in the Rogers factors. The first not le he was
oot on 4 public highway. e wes nol parked in the nlddie of
the street parpandicular Lo Lhe lanes of traffic, Se was not
stopped and asleap in 3 Wondy's store drumk. I/= sorry,
rive-thru. He Was ot bor hopping frum cas place to the
other driving as he wont from Lur Le bmr. lie was not driving
at 2ll on the highway when he was apprehemded by the police
officer. He was nul seen and arrested for driving drunk by
anybody at any time while he was in White Fine County. There
waz no Dispatch call about a drunk driver and 1 don’t want to
belabor the point and I’m going to bul bha was not driving,
apprebended, weaving, speeding, doing any of Lhose things, at
least weaving, yeah, doing any of the things we expect to ses
# drunk driver doing. He was sleecping. He was asleep. I
asied Sexgeant Shady Lo Lell me did be Tried To move the car,
could be have noved the car, he said yeah, he could have
backed up, he could have gone forward. Did be try to do any
of those things? No, Did he ever reach for the gear xhifs

CR-ISECE STATE OF NEVAII v 2AMVESE MEe2 Fawe Thos i, Vrmemamioos: m

bul = 3o we know that he had a4 good reason Lo oo that. It
wasn’t necwssarily because he wanted to drive saway. ODid he
need to drive away in order to get to work im Lhe norning?
No. He was less than a block from Lhe bus pickup. He could
get out of the car, walk past Subway and go gel in his bus.
Did he need o drive when he was on the job? No. No he
didn’t. Ee was in a cvew car. Waz the wehicle lecated in
public or private? Well I would argue the distinction there
private property, not private driveway. Uhe Jaw doesa’t say
anythlng aboul u drivoway ik thic cuse. IL asys wa3 ho on
public or private property. The concern would be what I said
before. I mean if he's parked perpendicular to the lane of
traffic, okay, the concern there is e going Lo immediately
atart driving down the highway or gomebody’ s going to hit him
whet he's in Lhe middle of the rosdway. That was not the case
hero. He was legally sarked. Did he dyive Lo Lhe location? Ne
tola you he did. He told you he did. He told you sonmething
eliv Lhal wes lOgOILAnt TOO. ANG WHat wes Lhat? Between the
encounters with the polics ¢fficer when Luke Shady 1aft him
alone, he finisned off a bottie. You want to know why his
alcokol level was two geven seven? Heo just finished off a
bottle. He told you he had two zhots with his dinner while
he's in the Ridley’s parkiang let. You decide 1f ha's
telling the truth or ae’s lying. That’s yeur call. I’m not
Linda Dovien, Lomsceds 12
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knoh? No, What did he do? He got out of the ¢ar went to the
back and opened the trunk lookiay for his driver’s license.
fie’d just been awakened. lle had a couple of shots and he
adnitted to doing that, but he wasn’t driving, he was
=lesping. Was il agalinst the law To park al that place?

No. Nag he dolng that legally? Yaah. Was 1t against the law
to sleap in your car? Not that I know of. But we resrified
to that. Shady 2aid he didn’t arrest hin for that. He was
arrested because he smelled and =uw alcohol and he belicved
he was in eclual physical contral of Lhe caz, and you’re
going to decide whether or not be wes. 50 what are the Rogers
faclors? Counsel gave them To you. [ will briefly go over
it. Where and in What pozilion Lhe parson iz found in tha
wehicle, so, tha firzt tastimony out of Shady he was
reclined, he wos asleep, he had hia hat on, he was as you can
see in the video gort of bent over to the sida. You can see
where he was. Be was asleap. How important is the keys in
the ignition? Engine’s running. T mean LI the engine’s
running the kKeys bhave to be in the ignition =o Lhat’s one,
that certainly counts against him, On the ather hand, he was
trying to keep warm. That’s & acosible thing to do. We Xnow
how ¢old it i in Bly in December. Okay. Mfe Lold you there
waz aight inchos of gnow on the ground wicn he went ue To the

mi e, Of course, Ruth 15 always a litlle colder than Ely
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going Lo tell you. You’re going to have to make & decision
based on what he told you about himself, what he tald you
about his family and you decide Sf he's a liar. Myrtis James
15 & hazd working guy who iz an electrician who does the bext
he can. Right? He's trying Lo snave money. Fis wife’s having
Lo go back and forth to the Four Corners and back to Saint
George., Un’s sending her all the mosky be can get., He's
working hard. He uses his hotel money for something else, aund
it wWas all ressonoble. None of that was an unreascnable
explanatlon for what occurved, You heard about the two
encounters. lle adnitted at the second encounter that he’
Zaen drinking quite 2 bit. He naver was asked that guestion
at the first encounter with Shady, and whether he was parked
in a private drivewmay or on private propeyty. These's no
mpalerial distinction in this case because il was privatae
properly, parked, asleep. 4¢ What was the rizk? Each of you
must. decide for yourself 1f this wus 2 real rizky sitvation
where somebody in White Pine County was al risk for getting
driven over by 2 drunk driver, And you’ll have to assess that
zigk. Tle was acleep behind the wheel. MNe was going Lo spend
the night slewping there just like be’d been doing tor forty-
five days in Mhite Pine County, never been arveated, never
had & problem, nothing gqoing on, just & working stire going
back and forth to the office, hiz office at the wine. Bach of
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you must decide the case for yourself bat should do so ouly
afcer digcussions of the evidence. You get to decide. T can’L
decide for you. I would ask that you find hin not guilty. 1
would agk that you consider those Rogerx factors. In the
verdict lorm you'll find that you have two opportunities to
find my client gquilty. Che opportunity comes if he was
driving, if he wae driving found drivirg. He wasn't found
driving. He was lound sleeping. And the olhaer opportunily is
he haz te ba over point zero eight at the time that he was
driving and you don’t xnow what his alcohol level was when he
wes driving because you never saw bim driving. You saw him
sleeping.

MS. RILP0N: Your Momor I'a going %o objecl, LhalL’s
noT one of tha options for the jury.

THRE COURT: Sustained.

M2, SEMRS: But you saw him sleeping, okay, and you
koow that kis blood alcohol level had to fe at point zero
eight percent. 1'm xorry, not percent bul point zero eight,
and yet you'll see in the instructions that if be drank = if
he drank after driving aand you beilleve that he drank after
driving, you must find him not guilty. I would urge you to
take a look carefully at eighiean, that instruction, and
decide if you balieve what be said about finfshiog the bottle
becavse if ho did finish that bottle, you heve to £ind hinm

CHAWEIE SLATE Of NEVADA v JAMES Svesesan T T, Tmmcr s "

said he drove there on 4 public roadway arter having some
shots. This may be different it this baé baprened at the
Love’s Truck Stop where the Defendant clzimed to be staying
and he had had 4 few drinks thore and net moved the wohicle.
Agein though, ke did not Lell Sargeant Shady that he was
staying «t Fonily Dollar. Ee said he wes stoying at the Truck
Stop. Now the Defendant is clsiming in testifying that during
the less than three minutes that Sergeant Shady was in the
vehicle, he was chugeing alcohol. Is that reasonable given
the facts wid visvumstances Lo LLLS Caaw (hal you heara
testimony about? Is that reasonable given the fact that
Sergeant Shady on bls initial approach belore the Defendant
claiss Lo have chugged this boltle of alcebol ha alrwady
ohserved an odsr of alcohol, already obeerved the Defendant’s
bloodahul watery eyes and alrecady cbierved the Delendant’s
clurzed speech? ls it reasonable given Thal when asked for
nig identification the Dofondant instead of locking in hie
wallet that he had jusl put away went to the tyunk of the
vebicle and told Sezgeant Shady when asked if he was
drinking, yeab, l1ast night, and you saw that oa the video. Iz
it reasonsble that ne opened the cax ~ Lhe door to the
vehicle becsuse be was hoT instead of turning otz the heater?
1s that reasonable? Is it reascusble given the Defendant’s
testimony that he had shots wilb dinner before going to the
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not guilty. 1L docsn’t matter 1f you like him or you don’t
likxe him, but The blood results would have been unreliable
because Lhey weren‘t done within two ours of being in actual
physical control because of the drinking aftar ha was ztopped
or at least found by Luke Shady. Pleasa take your time, 1 can
swe Lhal you're tived. [ can sce that you’re tired of
listening to me. o through those lnstructions, pay
altention, and find him aot gquilty. Thack you.

THE COURT: Thank you Mr. Sears. Final clasing Niss
Hilton?

MS. HILTON: Thank you Your Honor. The zeason Lt is
unlawful to be in actual physical conlrol of a vehicle, even
if that wehicle isn’t moving at the time, is Lo prevent
people Lrom belng Iln siruarions where Lhey are under the
inflvence of alcolol and unsale to doive and where they can
euslly recommence driving, In th:i= case, the Detendanl madta
the choice Lo consume alcshol and then be in actual paysical
control of & veldcle. This is pot & case where soneane drove
down to Racks, sobor, had a few drinks, fell they wee
fmpoired and decided to lay down in their back sest and slegp
it off until they were sober enocugh Lo drive home. What we
Lave in this case is the Defendant seated bhehind Lhe wheel of
& running vehicie at a buzinexx that was closed. The
Defendant mUST bave dziven thare on a public roadway and he

R, ERNOICY STATY. <F NENAI s JANRSY IR L m

Fomily Dollar parking 16r? 1% not reasonable ladies and
gentlemen, On the wideo you chzarved the Defendant’s behavior
and you observed the behavicr at that fnitial polnt before
the Defendaut cleims Lo have chugged Lhe bollle of alcohol.
Even if - even if you find it reaszonable Lhat the Defandant
while a ©op was sitting in a patrol vehicle right next to
hin, even if you think it’s reasonable that he decided it
would be a good idea to chug the rest of his alcohol, cven
given that, he was atill in actual physical control of the
venicle belore Lhal when Sergeant Shady tirst observed him,
Furthernore, he was in actual phyzical control of the wehicle
while Sergeant Shady was in his own vehicle. The vebicle was
still on, it was still running. Why did Lhe Defendant think
ha waz going to Jall? MWhy did he net tell Sergeant Shady
that be had been chugging aloobol in his vehicle? Me thought
be was going te jail because he was in actual physical
control of a wehicle while being under the influence of
alcohol. That's why he thought he was qoing to jail. MNr,
Sears discugsed the investigation in this case. I will leave
il to you to determine the investigation thal was done by the
Sheriff’s Otfice. The Llnvestigation that waa done by the
Sherift’s Office was Sergeant Shady observed a running
wehicla im & public parking lot, cbserved the Defendant
Seated behind the wheel of that rimning vehicle and ahzarved
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Lhe Defendant to bhave an odor of alcohol, adnissions to
drinking and thal he sppenred intoxicated. Thal is what the
investigation showed. And the investication is shown beyond
@ rosscnoble coubt that the Defendant was in ectusl physical
mantraol of tha notor veiicle while boing under the influence
of sleobol. It ic alse shewn that he was found by measurencnt
within twe hourx, in cur case approximately fifty-eight
minutes, to have a concenLration of alcobol of point two
seven seven which 13 three timex Zero point zero eight. Evan
though the Defendant was asleep at the time Sergeant Shady
epprosched hin, the Defendant bt pluced hinzelf in a
oltustion where he was asated behiod Lhe wheel of a wanitcle
ir actual physicel contzol while being under the influence of
alcohel. lLadies end gentlieman, you have Lo decide in thig
case what’s reasomable and whal is not ressonable and you
have to cacide whether the Defendant’s statement That he was
chigging aloohol while The cop war zitting necarby ia
reasonable. But evan if you do find that that was
reasonable, that that was & reasonable statement and a
reagonable action end {hal that’s what you think happened
beze, the State hos still shown that Lhe Dafandant was in
actual physical control of the wehicle or thal be wag under
the inZluence ol inloxicating liquor and I ask you To find
him gquilty. Thank you,

CR-2NCE STATE OF MEVALMN b JANER LR LS Y Lanta i ron, Tommardos m

place for deliberation, allow n¢ one Lo speak to them or Lo
apaak to them yourself, on the aublect of Lhe caxe now on
trial except to bring the into Court when required Lo d¢ S0,
s0 help you God?

BATLIFF: I do.

THE COURT: Okay. Ladies and gestlanan, in just a
noment you Will ratire to the werdict. At the beginning of
the tzial I fpdicated that prior to dellterations that |
would advise Lhe jurors of which one of Lhe jurors w»as
awlocled a5 Lhe altercate Jurcor and Miss MWeir you were
selected a3 the allernaled jusor. You were The last perscn
alphabetically to be seated and it just worked out that way.
It was nothing mpgic in that. It just worked cut that way
today. So yuu sru Lho alternate juror and then yeu = you’ll
be sequestered separately f¥om the remainder of the jurars
and our = our Railiff will see to that. ALl of the jurors in
the jury room, if you have cell phones, you’re going Lo have
Lo give tham up, ckay? You bave To give them up Lo our
Bailiff here. You’ll get them back. Ne won’t go through
then. Me don’t even look at them bul you’ re not allowed to
take your oell phopes loto the Jury vaem with you, okay, so
we’ 1l just hold an ta them and the completion of your
deliberations, of course you'll gel Lien all back. So at this
= this tima wefll allew you to retive to the jury room. The
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THE COURT: Thank you Miss Hilton. Ladies and
gentiemen, you have attached te yoar jucy iastructions a
vexdict form. I’m going to 6o over it with you briafly at
this Lime. It indicates we the jury in the above-entitled
case unanimously find the Defesdant, MyrLis Tyrone Japes, AXA
Jamms Tyrone Myrtic as follows, Count Coe, Dyiving or Selng
in Actual or Physicel Control of a Vehicle Nhile Under the
Influence of Intoxicating Liquor. You may select one or both
©of the theories of guilt in Count Ome by checking the
appropriate box or boxes or you may find the Defendant not
guilty by checking that box. The first box is quilty of
being in actual oF phys:ical control while under the intluence
of intoxicating liguor and or the nexr hax in ardar, guilty
of being found bY Beasuye within two hours or being in actual
phynical contral of a wehicle Te have a concentration of
aleobol of zare point zerc eight or more in his blaod, and
the third box ia mot guilly, ond doted this blank day of May,
twenty twenty-one to be siqued by your foreperson. The
original of thiz verdict form will go with you to the jury in
addition Lo Lhe Exhibits that have been introdoced into =
inte evidebcae. AL Lhix tims then, we will have the Eailiff
suorn in by the Clerk.

CLERX: Do wou selennly swear that you will Lake
charge of this jury ta coa conduct Lhen to come private
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evidence will be brought back to you. T ask that everyone in
tha courtroon pleage stand as the jury retires. Ah, you can
go out and just remain in The lobby area Miss Weir okay.
Please be seated everyone, Let the record reflect that we are
in the continuation of the jury trial. We have the presence
of in this case our Defendant, Defeandant’s oounsel, State’s
counsel. Counsal T - just be within cell phone range of the
courthouse and you know stay within the area. I appreciate
the professionalism of both counsel sand the preparation the
Defenze in Lhis case was well done,

MR. SEARS: Thank you.

MS. EILTON: Thank you Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay. Court’s in recess.

UNKNOWI PERSON: All rise.

BATLIFF: ALl rise.

THE COURT: Court’s in aexsion please be scuted. Let
the record reflect that we’re in the continuation of our jury
trial, Me have Lhe presence of our Defendant, Nr. Jumes, hiz
counsel Mr. Richard Scars, State’s councel, Miss McKinzie
nilton. Mr. or Miss Foreparson have the jury reached a
verdict?

FOREPERSON: Yos we have.

THE COURT: Very well. We’ll have Lhe Bailiff obtain
Lhe verdict form. Thank you. The Defendant please stand?
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Misx Clerk?

CLERK: Case Nupber C K Cpe Nine Uh Three Oh Two
Eight, Department Number Two. The Seventh Judicial Diatrict
Court of the State of Navada in and for the County of White
Pine, the State of Nevada, Plaintiff, versus Mysiis Ty:oue
Janes, AA Junes Tyrone Myctls, Defendant.. Verdict. ¥e the
jury lo the above-entitle case unaninousiy found the
Defendant NyrTis Tyrone James, AKA Janes Tyrone Ny:Lis as
follows, Count Ona, Driving or Baing in Actuzl Phygical
Control of a Vehicle while Under the Tnfluence of
Intoxicating Ligquor gquilty of being in actual aad oz physical
contzol of & movor wehicle while under lhe intluence of
intoxicating liguor. DTated this nineteenth day of May, Twenty
TNenTy-one, Foreperson.

THE COURT: 1f you'll hand that toe ne for just a
momant. There was a second Dox that was checked ag well. I
you'll resd that second Dox oo the tep okay. Yeah.

THEE CLERK: Guilty of being found by seesureasat
within two hours efter driving or being in sctusl physical
control of a wehicle to have & concentration of al¢obel of
zgro poinl zexo eight or more in his blood.

THE COURT: Thank you. The Defendsnt moy sit. Mr.
Swarx do you wish to bhave the jury polled?

MR, SKARS: No Your Honor.

CR 3008 STATEOFNEVADW v JANES 81819000 Linda Duwisx, Tracaarider "

Lote custody pending santancing. Thank you Your Nonor,

TEE COURT: Mr. Sears.

MR. SEMRS: Yes.

TEE COURT: Can be heard.

MR. SEARS: Thank you Your Honor. Your Honor my
cliant’s baan cut sinca Dacarber twantioth of twonty
eighteen. He’s worked, Ze’s gol oo further acrests, there
bave been no issues wilh him driving ucder the influence,
there have been no subsequent offenses, he’s sppeared. My
Client calle oo every week regular as clock work ang reportsa
in. There’s never been o week when he falled to stay in
contact, He has a bome in Saint George. be has no reason Lo
rmn ar to commit any crimes o to do anything elze, It will
give hin an CPpoXTUniTY e Say gosdbye Lo his wile and his
children. e underatands the zotential sentenves ond Uhe
Seriousness of this in thisz case. But 1 ¢o not believe that
Lheza’s any risk whatsoever of him failing to appear. He's
never failed To appaar in any other case, and he’s an honsst
man Judge.

THE COURT: This Court hasn’t but did the Justice
Tourt ever caroactale the boady

MR. SERRS: Ha’s - ha’g 3till cut on hie bond.

THE COURT: A1l right. Thank you. Anything further
Miss Hilton?

RGN STATE CFMEVALSA m JMEY 3385132031
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THEE COURT: Ladies and gentlemen on behalf of the
Beventh Judicial District Court we appreciate the work that
you have done as jurors in this case. We know as T said at
the ontcome of this case it wonld take a lot of your tine
wven if it’s for a couple of days and it's - it's - it's @
vital service that all af us participate in as citizens of
This country and we know that you worked very diligently and
we appruciate the service with respect o this case. I'm
going to ask that you renain seated and 1'm going to complate
the balance of this case. With respect to the findings of
Lhe juey in this case, the Couzl beseby eatess judgnent
against the Defendant for driving or being in actual physical
control of a vehicle while being under the influence of
intoxicating liquor, a felony offense in violation of
N. R, S, Four Eighty-four € Point One One Zero, WN. R, S, Four
Eighty-four C Point Zero Twe Zero, N. R. S. Four Eighty-four
C Polinl Four Zero Zero and N. R. 5. Four Elghty-four C Point
Four One Zeoro. With refercncs to the matter of =~ of the
Defendant‘s status, would you like to be heard on that
matters

N5, UILTON: Yes. Thank you Your Boaor. Your Honar al
thiz time given that the Detendant has been found guilty of
thin offansza, and given that this iz no longer a4 pretrisl
detaention issue, Lhe Stata is axking thar Mr. Jamas be placed

TR 198308 STATEOF NTVADA w INMFS ST M2EN T Dwvin, Tommnadme m

M5. HILTON: Mo Your Eoaor, other than that the
situation with the Uefendant’s wich Lo appear bus changed
given The fact of the conviction, Tasnk you,

THE COURT: Thank you. Taking into consideration the
arqurents of counsel, the - the Court denies the State’s
request to revoke the bond. The Court will allew the
Defondant To remain out on bond pending szentencing in this
case. Die has posted a ten thousand dollar bood in this
matter. He bas appeared at all proceedings in this Court
and To thia knowledge in the = in the Justice Court. The
Court sets a sentencing in this case for Monday, August
sixteenth, twenty twenty-one at ten ©°clock on the Court’s
staff calendar. That will be Lthe Defesdant’s sext
appearance. Mr. James, and you can Lalk wilh Mr, Sears,
you'ze going to be required 1o Interview with Lhe Dwparipent
of Parole and Probation. Since you live in Utah, I suggest
That you even COnTact Them This alterncon. Mr. Sears coan
give you their numbar and make arvangements to meet with
Them. They may conduct thelir iate:sview by Lelephone., That's
how they’ve been doing thal = this recently during the
pandemic. I don’t Know that they’ve changed but they can let
you know. Mr. Sears will give you their telephone number and
you can reach the by that otherwise that’s your next Court
appearance.

O 3000 STOF OB NEVADA v s ARl Ll il D, Tommrmaiioes ins
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ME. JAMES: Thank you.

THY COURT: 1s there anything further then from the
State or the Defense.

MS. MILTON: Ne Your Homor,

TEE COURT: QOkay.

HR. SEARS: No thank You're your Honor.

THE COURT: Then at this time the - this trial bas
baen concluded. The Courl is goling Lo be in recess ang
exXrCuse everyone in the courtroom from this preceeding excopt
tor the jury for a few minutes and that will include ay Court
Clerk whan she bas Wrappes up her duties as far as what she
needs to do witk rocpect to our JAVS, okay. Thunk you.

HR. SEARS: Thank you Your Henor.

M3. HILTON: Thank you Your Monor,

THE CCURT: Thank you, 1711 excusge “vATYONE.

CK 19048 STATE OF NeVADA vi. IS e Fieie Thrvion., Yvmrmaryur: L
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ATTEST: Purcuant Lo Rule 3C(d] of the Nevada Rules of
Mppeliont Procedurs, 1 acknowledge that thiz is a rough draft
Lranscript, expeditiously prepered, not proofread, corrected,

or certified to be an accurate Lranscript.

LINDR DAVIES
Court Transcriber
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THE SEVENTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF
NEVADA, IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WHITE PINE

¥ % %k %k K kK K

Plaintiff,

INSTRUCTIONS

Defendant.

LADIES AND GENTLEMEN OF THE JURY:

INSTRUCTION NO. _Z-

What | say now is intended to help serve as an introduction to the trial of this

case. ltis intended to explain the general procedure we use, the order in which the case

will be presented, and provide some assistance in explanation of your responsibility while

hearing the case.

The trial will proceed in the following order.

First, the District Attorney will make an opening statement outlining the State’s

case. Counsel for the Defendant may make an opening statement then or reserve his

opening statement until the conclusion of the State's case. The opening statement is not

219 James App App
Docket 83439 Document 2021-36714
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evidence. The statements serve as an introduction to the evidence which the party making
the statement intends to prove.

Second, the State will introduce evidence in support of the charge contained
in the Amended Criminal Information. |

Third, after the State has presented its evidence, the Defendant may present
evidence, but is not required to do so. There may be rebuttal evidénce. The burden is
always on the State to prove every element of the offense charged beyond a reasonable
doubt. The law never imposes the burden of calling any witnesses or introducing any
evidence in a criminal case on the Defendant.

During the trial, it may be necessary for me to consult with the attorneys from
time to time out of your hearing concerning questions of law or procedure. On occasion you
will be excused from the courtroom while | consult with the attorneys. We will try to limit
such interruptions as much as possible. We ask you to remember the importance of the
case and to maintain your patience during interruptions.

Fourth, at the conclusion of the evidence, | will instruct you in the law and the
parties will have the opportunity to present closing arguments. The clésing arguments are
not evidence, but are intended to help you understand the evidence and apply the law.

Fifth, you will then retire to the jury room. You will select a foreperson,
deliberate and arrive at a verdict which must be unanimous.

The law as given by the Court in this and other instructions constitutes the only

law you may rely upon for your guidance and it is your duty to accept and follow it.

220 James App App
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Your purpose as jurors is to find and determine the facts and to determine
them from the evidence and the reasonable inferences arising from such evidence, and in
so doing, you must not indulge in guesswork or in speculation.

The evidence which you are to consider consists of the testimony of witnesses
and the exhibits admitted in evidence. The term "witness" means anyone who testifies,
including the parties. This admission of evidence in Court is govérned by rules of law.
From time to time it may be the duty of the attorneys to make objections and my duty as
Judge to rule on those objections and whether you can consider certain evidence. You
must not concern yourself with the objections or the Court's reasons for these rulings. You
must not consider testimony or exhibits to which an objection was sustained or which has
been ordered stricken.

No statement or ruling or remark which | may make during the course of the
trial is intended to indicate my opinion as to what the facts are. You are to determine the
facts. In this determination, you alone must decide upon the believability of the evidence
and its weight and value. In considering the weight and value of the testimony of any
witness you may take into consideration the appearance, attitude and behavior of the
witness, the interest of the witness in the outcome of the trial, the relation of the witness to
any parties to the trial, the inclination of the witness to speak truthfully or not, the probability
or improbability of the witness' statements, and all other facts and circumstances in
evidence. Thus, you may give the testimony of any witness just such weight and value as
you may believe the testimony of such witness is entitled to receive.

While serving as a juror you must not make any independent investigation of

the facts or the law, you must not visit the scene, conduct experiments or consult books or

221 James App App
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persons for additional information.

Until this case is submitted to you for your deliberation, you must not discuss
this case with anyone or remain within hearing of anyone discussing it. After this case has
been submitted to you, you must discuss this case only in the jury room when all members
of the jury are present. You are to keep an open mind and you shall not decide any issue
in this case until the case is submitted to you for your deliberation under the instructions of
the Court.

GIVEN BY THE COURT. st 5 0%y

C )
/&’ﬁj v@ AL e

DISTRICT JUDGE
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INSTRUCTION NO.____

Every person who testifies under oath or affirmation is a witness. You are the
sole judges of the believability of a witness and the weight to be given the testimony of each
H witness.

In determining the believability of a witness you may consider anything that
has a tendency in reason to prove or disprove the truthfulness of. the testimony of the
witness including, but not limited to any of the following:

The extent of the opportunity or ability of the witness to see or hear or
otherwise become aware of any matter about which the witness has testified;

The ability of the witness to remember or to communicate any matter about
which the witness has testified;

The character and quality of that testimony;

The demeanor and manner of the witness while testifying;

The existence or non-existence of a bias, interest, or other motive,

i Evidence of the existence or non-existence of any fact testified to by the
witness;

The attitude of the witness toward the action in which testimony has been
given by the witness or toward the giving of testimony;

A statement previously made by the witness that is consistent or inconsistent
with the testimony of the witness;

The character of the witness for honesty or truthfulness or their opposites;

An admission by the witness of untruthfulness;
The witness' prior conviction of a felony.
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INSTRUCTION NO.___ 2

A witness who is willfully false in one material part of his or her testimony, is
to be distrusted in others. You may reject the whole testimony of a witness who willfully has
testified falsely as to a material point, unless, from all the evidence, you shall believe the
probability of truth favors his or her testimony in other particulars.

However, discrepancies in a witness' testimony or. between his or her
testimony and that of others, if there are any, do not necessarily mean that the witness
should be discredited. Failure of recollection is a common experience; and innocent
misrecollection is not uncommon. It is a fact, also, that two persons witnessing an incident
or a transaction often will see or hear it differently. Whether a discrepancy pertains to a fact

of importance or only to a trivial detail should be considered in weighing its significance.
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INSTRUCTIONNO.____“t

In determining questions of fact presented in this case, you should be
governed solely by the evidence introduced and admitted before you. You are to bring to
the consideration of the evidence before you, your everyday common sense and judgment
as reasonable men and women and those just and reasonable inferences and deductions
which you as men and women could ordinarily draw from facts and circumstances proven
in the case. You are not to fancy situations or circumstances which you would not draw
from the evidence, but you are to make those just and reasonable inferences from the
circumstances proven which the guarded judgment of reasonable men and women would

ordinarily make under like circumstances.
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INSTRUCTION NO. D

Two classes of evidence are recognized and admitted in Courts of Justice
upon either or both of which, if adequately convincing, juries may lawfu[ly use to determine
whether the defendant is guilty or not guilty. One is direct evidence and the other is
circumstantial evidence.

Direct evidence is where a witness who, with any of his or her own physical
senses, testifies to what he or she saw, heard, felt, observed, or otherwise perceived, and
which testimony relates what was perceived.

All other evidence admitted in the trial is circumstantial, and insofar as it
shows any acts, declarations, conditions, or other circumstances tending to prove or
disprove the crime charged, it may be considered by you in arriving at a verdict.

The law makes no distinction between circumstantial evidence and direct
evidence as to the degree of proof required for conviction, but respects each for such
convincing force as it may carry and accepts each as a reasonable method of proof. Either
will support a verdict of guilty or not guilty if it carries the convincing quality required by law

as stated in the instructions.
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INSTRUCTION NO. @‘

You will be given the opportunity to ask written questions of any of the
witnesses called to testify in this case. You are not encouraged to ask excessive numbers
of questions because that is the primary responsibility of counsel.

Jurors will not be allowed to become “the third attorney” or advocate a position
in the case through juror questions. Questions may be asked only in the following manner:
after all lawyers have finished questioning the witness, you may then seek permission from
me to ask the witness a written question. Should you desire to ask a question, write your
